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Chairman'’s Statement

EERE

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS MBRE
2016 2015
—E—XF —E—HF

Financial Performance (HK$'000) BMERRE (FHExT)

Revenue WA 609,335 702,856
Gross profit ES 5,852 40,803
Gross profit margin FEH = 1.0% 5.8%
EBITDA (Note 1) EBITDA (Fi7E1) (12,237) 19,210
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners ARIHEE AEN

of the parent wmAl S (EE) (33,123) 15,874

Financial Position (HK$'000) BN (F87T)

Cash and cash equivalents BeNREEEY 16,885 143,693
Goodwill (Note 2) AE (fE2) 490,948 -
Intangible assets (Note 2) BEE (FI5E2) 687,523 -
Profit guarantee (Note 2) wmAMREE (FFE2) 9,636 -
Total assets BEE 1,702,936 376,040
Liability component of convertible bonds AR ESRz BERS

(Note 2) (Kf&E2) 340,316 -
Promissory notes (Note 2) A EE (MiE2) 426,576 -
Total liabilities mAE 1,169,985 149,913
Net assets BEFE 532,951 226,127
Current ratio (Note 3) EIEL R (BIEE3) 1.6 2.5
Gearing ratio (Note 4) EIREE (M524) 143.2% 0%
Return on equity (Note 5) PRAS Bl (M95E5) N/A & 7.0%

Notes: ffzaT -

1. Profit/(loss) before income tax, depreciation and 1. BT SR AER(EE) - Tﬁ%&ﬁﬁﬁ -
amortisation, interest income, finance costs and exchange BUIA - BB R REL K (EE) -
gains/(losses).

2. Goodwill, intangible assets and profit guarantee were 2. R BIEEE KoaRE TR Bl 2
derived from the newly acquired automotive engines BRI - W AHAR AT KA R R
business while the liability portion of convertible bonds and 2 BEBD A RZIBWEMET -
promissory notes were issued for such acquisition.

3. Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by 3. MB L E TR REMROREBDEELR AR
current liabilities as at the end of the reporting period. BEFESF/L -

4. Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing the total of interest- 4. TEAR L R o & BR VAT B A4 ~ 7]
bearing borrowings, liability component of convertible BRER 2 BB G MEA KRB S IR
bonds and promissory notes less cash and cash equivalent SEEDBR A RERBRA00%HSH -
by the total equity as at the end of the reporting period and
multiplied by 100%.

5. The calculation of return on equity is based on the profit 5. A B $RE IR FE AR AIHEE AR

attributable to owners of the parent during the year divided
by the ending equity attributable to owners of the parent as
at the end of the reporting period and multiplied by 100%.
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Chairman’s Statement

EE®/E

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Excel Development (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company”), | hereby present the annual results of the

Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2016.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

Loss for the year ended 31 March 2016 attributable
to shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”)
amounted to approximately HK$33.1 million in contrast to
a profit of approximately HK$15.9 million in 2015. Basic
and diluted loss per share was approximately HK16.6 cents
as compared to basic and diluted earnings per share of
HK7.9 cents in 2015. The turnaround was mainly due to (i)
the unsatisfactory results of the civil engineering works due
to increasing costs of operation; and (ii) the finance costs
of approximately HK$10.0 million charged on convertible
bonds and promissory notes in relation to the newly
acquired automotive engines business.

During the year under review, the revenue of the
Group's civil engineering and construction business was
approximately HK$467.6 million (2015: HK$702.9 million),
representing a decrease of 33.5% when compared with
that of last year. The decrease was primarily due to the
fact that the Group was not awarded with new significant
contracts from the public sector during the year. The civil
engineering and construction business recorded a segment
loss of approximately HK$12.9 million (2015: segment profit
of approximately HK$27.9 million). In the view that such
business have been affected by increasing materials, staff
and labour costs and the competitive market in recent years,
the financial and operating performance of this segment
remained lack of satisfaction.

BEALCR
AABURREEERERDA (ARF)
8% (25 & (EF2)) REAAFARHE

MEBAR (5 [A£E]) BE-T—<F=
A=+—BLEFENRFEE -
REEBERAR

ARABRR ((BR)) BEBE-F—RF=

A Z+— H 1FF 5 & 18 49 /433,100,000/%8 7T -
R ZF— R F 815 4% 4915,900, OOO/%E °
tﬂx%zl»‘&%ﬁ%lgﬁ?gi’]/’%‘léé/ﬁfm =

FFRSSTRERNREERFT7 .98 - %f“
ER AR EHN Eﬁﬁéﬁ%%;ﬂzzxtﬂ ECES
TARTIRRZEESTIEE KA KE
BRI ER 2 AR RES KA R REI A
8175 % F 910,000,000 7T

REBEFERN ARELARTRERBEXEZ
W A #) 73467,600,0008 7T (= F — I F
702,900,000/8 7T) * ¥ EF FEL33.5% ° T Bk
FERRARERF AL EENLIPTR L
MEARAH - TATRREEXRBERS D BE
1#8#912,900,00087C (ZF — R F : 2 #i 7l
#)/%27,900,000/8 7T ) ° FIFA L R AS T 4F 2 21)
£t~ BTME TR EFH A R B T 45 35 5
g WM EREERIDARINE

|
A8 o
A
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Chairman'’s Statement

EERE

Looking ahead, the Directors are cautions about the
prospect of the construction business, and we expect that
the adverse operation environment will remain tough in the
coming years such as continuously rising wages and cost of
construction materials and shortage of skilled labour. The
Group will continue to adopt a prudent approach when
submitting new tenders and enhance cost control initiatives
to remain competitive in the industry.

On 4 February 2016, the Group has successfully acquired
the automotive engines business. The newly acquired
automotive engines business had contributed approximately
HK$141.7 million revenue to the Group, represented
23.3% of the Group revenue, and recorded a segment
profit of approximately HK$5.2 million including the
amortisation of the 5 years sales contracts and deferred
tax credit amounting to approximately HK$8.4 million and
approximately HK$1.9 million respectively. Apart from such
amortisation and its relevant deferred tax, the automotive
engines business recorded a segment profit of HK$11.7
million which shall be more truly reflect its actual financial
and operating performance as such amortisation and its
relevant deferred tax did not affect the actual cashflow of
the Group.

According to some public statistics and research, the
Chinese automotive manufacturing industry has been
growing at an annualised rate of 10.0% during the past
five years. In addition, with strong support from the
Chinese government and the low oil price environment,
the automotive manufacturing industry is expected to
experience steady and substantial growth over the next five
years. Given the abovementioned prospects of the Chinese
automotive industry, the automotive engines business will
become the key segment of the Group in the near future
and continue to broaden our revenue stream and improve
our Group's results.

In order to strengthen the competitive advantages in the
automotive business, on 24 May 2016, the Group entered
into an agreement with an independent third party, in
connection with a possible acquisition of automotive wheels
and tyres business at a consideration of HK$390.0 million
through issuance of convertible bonds.

b6 Excel Development (Holdings) Limited & %55 f% A PR A &)
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Chairman’s Statement

EE®/E

Looking forward, the Group will continue to proactively
seize strategic investment opportunities with an aim to
further strengthen the asset base and strive for the best
return to the Shareholders.

APPRECIATION

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take
this opportunity to express my sincere appreciation to
our management team and staff for their dedication
commitment, as well as our valued shareholders,
business partners and associates for their support and
encouragement to the Group in the past year.

Wong Hin Shek
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2016
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Summary of Significant Contracts on Hand

ERFHREIBE

The following table summarises our significant contracts on
hand for the civil engineering and construction business as

at 31 March 2016:

Particulars of the contract

TERBERMAR—FE-—R"EF=ZA=1T—HFH
IARTREFRZBEXBNEAFTEERL

Contract sum

BRFE BHLHE
HKS$ million
A&EETT
Waterworks KBTI
Replacement and rehabilitation of water E M EEKE T BB AR FE 1 B— NEE 616
mains stage 4 phase 1 — Mains in West 7o EH REEKE TIE(13/WSD/10)
Kowloon, Kwai Tsing and Tsuen Wan
(13/WSD/10)
Replacement and rehabilitation of water FRRIEEKEFTEIBIERE 11— FIRR 345
mains stage 4 phase 1 — Major mains in FEKETREASL(10/WSD/11)
Eastern New Territories (10/WSD/11)
Replacement and rehabilitation of water BB REBEKEFTEEIBEFE1IH— EBE 467
mains stage 4 phase 1 — Remaining mains BTEEKETIEAL(E/WSD/12)
on Hong Kong Island (3/WSD/12)
Roads and drainage works ERREBIE
Provision of external cable construction works 12t FINEBE R N EERE —
and outside telecommunications plant (Note)
maintenance services (M3E)
Proposed Development at Hai Tan Street/ RO B WG SRS 15
Kweilin Street/Pei Ho Street, Sham Shui Po ERIAHE
Advance Civil Engineering Works for Public ESMAREREHE (ZE—HFZE 40
Housing Development Projects Batch 5 —T—+tF) g ARTR
(2015 - 2017)
Landslip preventive and remedial works to Br Ll LREE U R RIS SE T2
slopes
Upgrading/Improvement works to Lands MR I RAINERE S hE TR 158

Department slopes in the Northern Regions
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Summary of Significant Contracts on Hand

BEAFHANOBE

Particulars of the contract

Contract sum

BRFE BREH
HK$ million
BEBTT
Utilities civil engineering works ANAZELIARIE
Term contract for provision of RESBAREREERE 2 TR IEERELD —
civil engineering works for the (Note)
telecommunication networks and (F3E)
associated facilities
Provision of integrated field works for field REBBREE BEEERRS —
services in Hong Kong region (Note)
(F5E)
Provision of integrated field works for field IR NERR A BEBER R —
services in Kowloon region (Note)
(ME)
Provision of civil works for cable circuit REEEPASES TREEEBEENET 42
improvement for certain areas of the Central ARIHE
and Western District of the Hong Kong Island
Gas pipelaying work at King's Road between ~ HE2ETEEHRMHRTRE 21
Shipyard Lane and Healthy Street East (MM ERERRE2ME)
Civil works for rehabilitation of water BYREREEN ANRALRE  MENETE 35
reservoirs, fire-proofing improvement work 2GR R INETIRE REERKELR
for structures at MSB and miscellaneous
improvement works at LPS & LMX
Construction and Maintenance of Trenching/ & « BN - B Y & M EMBEESN&ER —
Cable Laying and Contractual Works in the BEHRNEENRERAOIRE (Note)
Areas of Hong Kong, Ap Lei Chau, Lamma (F3E)
Island and any Outlying Island
Rehabilitation of Underground Fire Hydrant MR BHA R EIRE R T ERE 20
Pipes at Gas Turbine and Stage 3 Areas BEIR
Other — Building construction works Hit — BFEEITR
New Entrances and Associated Modification EEEEF N EAN TR 80

Works in Tsuen Wan West

Note: No contract sum provided in the contracts due to the nature  FfisE : EREHME - FENGHNLEBEEENE

of the relevant contracts.

R o
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BERENWR D

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year under review, the Group was engaged
in two business segments, (i) civil engineering works
and building construction and maintenance works (the
“Civil Engineering and Construction Business”); and (ii)
development, production and sale of automotive engines
(the "Automotive Engines Business”). For the year ended
31 March 2016, the Group recorded a consolidated revenue
of approximately HK$609.3 million (2015: approximately
HK$702.9 million). Loss for the year attributable to
shareholders was approximately HK$33.1 million (2015:
profit of approximately HK$15.9 million). The turnaround
was mainly due to (i) the unsatisfactory results of the civil
engineering works due to increasing costs of operation;
and (ii) the finance costs of approximately HK$10.0 million
charged on convertible bonds and promissory notes in
relation to the newly acquired Automotive Engines Business.
Basic and diluted loss per share were approximately
HK16.6 cents (2015: basic and diluted earnings per share of
approximately HK7.9 cents).

Civil Engineering and Construction Business

All of the Group's contracts undertaken for both civil
engineering construction business and building construction
and maintenance business were for customers which are
independent third parties including certain departments of
the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region, public utilities companies and private organisations
in Hong Kong.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the revenue of
Group’s Civil Engineering and Construction Business were
approximately HK$467.6 million (2015: approximately
HK$702.9 million), represented a decrease of approximately
33.5% when compared with that of last year. For the year
under review, included in the revenue was: (i) revenue
from civil engineering works of approximately HK$437.3
million (2015: approximately HK$543.0 million); and (ii)
revenue from building construction and maintenance works
of approximately HK$30.3 million (2015: approximately
HK$159.9 million).

10 Excel Development (Holdings) Limited & %55 f% A PR A &)
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENRR D

BUSINESS REVIEW (Cont’'d)

Civil Engineering and Construction Business (Cont’d)
The overall gross profit of this segment decreased from
approximately HK$40.8 million for the year ended 31 March
2015 to a gross loss of approximately HK$78,000 for the year
ended 31 March 2016. The decrease was mainly attributable
to general and additional costs incurred for certain projects
during the year.

As of 31 March 2016, the Group had 16 significant projects
in progress. All such significant projects in progress, except
for the building construction project newly awarded in
current year, are civil engineering construction projects.

As of 31 March 2016, the total contract sum and the total
outstanding values of the Group’'s substantial projects
in progress were approximately HK$1,839.0 million and
HK$559.0 million respectively.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group was
awarded with the following new substantial contracts:

e Construction and Maintenance of Trenching/Cable
Laying and Contractual Works in the Areas of Hong
Kong, Ap Lei Chau, Lamma Island and any Outlying
Island

e Proposed Development at Hai Tan Street/Kweilin
Street/Pei Ho Street, Sham Shui Po

e Rehabilitation of Underground Fire Hydrant Pipes at
Gas Turbine and Stage 3 Areas

e Advance Civil Engineering Works for Public Housing
Development Projects Batch 5 (2015 - 2017)

e New Entrances and Associated Modification Works in
Tsuen Wan West

E¥oeE (&)
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NEZA=1T—BLLFEEIELT8,0008 T °

TREIEANETHEERFRAEENBREIN
PXZRFTER ©
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RI47741,839,000,0007% 7T K& 559,000,000/ 7T ©

RBE-_T-—R"F=ZA=1+—HILFE &%
BERATHEREGL
s FE- ?%Hﬂ;‘)‘\‘l CEYEREMARESHKZ

L/ EEH

REOEERRERGHTIE

o RKEEEE S EME AR
fIBH

o AREETFMAMA K FEIFEER R T HET R
BIET R

/_(ET

_\

o ESHAKEERES
+4) Eﬁ,ﬂﬂiﬂilﬁ

ﬂﬁ:l:— =

o ZEWIEBMAFEAOILRE

Annual Report 2015/16 —Z—F /— /N &4 11



Management Discussion and Analysis
BERENWR D

BUSINESS REVIEW (Cont'd)

Automotive Engines Business

On 4 February 2016, the Group acquired a new business
engaged in development, production and sale of
automotive engines. During the year ended 31 March 2016,
the Automotive Engines Business recorded a segment
revenue of approximately HK$141.7 million for two months
since the date of completion of the acquisition. The
segment profit reached approximately HK$11.7 million
excluding the amortisation of 5 years' sales contracts and
deferred tax credit amounting to approximately HK$8.4
million and approximately HK$1.9 million respectively,
which merely represented an accounting treatment on the
acquisition but no cash flow effect to the Group.

Pursuant to the terms of agreements dated 12 October
2015, 20 November 2015 and 15 January 2016 (collectively
refer to as the "Engines SPA") in relation to the acquisition
of Automotive Engines Business, the vendor has irrevocably
warranted and guaranteed to the Company that the audited
profit after tax of the Automotive Engines Business shall
not be less than HK$170.0 million and HK$230.0 million for
the first and second year upon completion respectively.
Driving by the increasing demand and consumer spending
on automotives, the Board is confident of a good prospect
with high and sustainable growth in the investment in the
Automotive Engines Business and expect this new business
would further strengthen the revenue stream of the Group
in near future.

PROSPECTS

Although the operating environment of the construction
business is expected to remain tough in the coming years
such as continuously rising wages and cost of construction
materials and shortage of skilled labour, the Board is
confident that the Group would be capable of securing
promising business opportunities given its vast experience
in handling a wide variety of construction works. The Group
will continue to adopt a prudent approach when submitting
new tenders.

In addition, the Group will make use of its competitive
strengths by continuing to improve its quality of service and
competitiveness to capitalise on the trend of increasing civil
engineering construction works projects in Hong Kong in
the coming years to further strengthen the Group's business
growth.
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PROSPECTS (Cont'd)

Meanwhile, the newly acquired Automotive Engines
Business will become a growth engine of the Group as the
consumption market in the People’s Republic of China (the
"PRC") is expected to have a steady growth in next few
years, driven by the deduction of purchase tax on passenger
vehicles and the international oil price. The Group remains
optimistic on the demand of automotives and thus
stimulating the Automotive Engines Business.

Turbocharged engine is one of the major products in the
Automotive Engines Business. The Group will accelerate
to promote the turbocharged engine in domestic
market, enhance its quality and enrich product models.
It is expected that the Group will experience a rapid
development in automotive industry.

Looking ahead, the Board will closely monitor the market
and seize other growth opportunities to adopt appropriate
measures and strategies to strive for the best return to the
Shareholders.

DIVIDEND

On 5 June 2015, the Directors declared a special cash
dividend of HK$50.0 million, representing HK$0.25
per ordinary share in the issued share capital of
the Company and was approved by the Company's
shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting on
4 August 2015 (2015: Nil). The Board does not recommend
payment of any final dividend for the year ended 31 March
2016 (2015: Nil).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE, FINANCIAL RESOURCES,
LIQUIDITY AND GEARING

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had cash and bank
balances amounting to approximately HK$16.9 million (2015:
approximately HK$143.7 million). The decrease was mainly
due to the payment of special cash dividend of HK$50.0
million and the retention payable to a former fellow
subsidiary of approximately HK$60.0 million that had been
settled. The Group had not pledged any bank deposits for
the bank loans.

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents were denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE, FINANCIAL RESOURCES,
LIQUIDITY AND GEARING (Cont’'d)

As at 31 March 2016, the total assets were approximately
HK$1,702.9 million (2015: approximately HK$376.0 million).
The significant increase was mainly due to goodwill,
intangible assets and profit guarantee of approximately
HK$490.9 million, HK$687.5 million and HK$9.6 million
respectively, arising from the acquisition of the Automotive
Engines Business.

As at 31 March 2016, the total liabilities were approximately
HK$1,170.0 million (2015: approximately HK$149.9 million).
Given that the acquisition of Automotive Engines Business,
the Company issued convertible bonds and promissory
notes at principal amount of HK$390.0 million and HK$410.0
million respectively, as the consideration. The convertible
bonds are due in 2018 with non-interest bearing and its
carrying amount was approximately HK$731.0 million in
which approximately HK$390.7 million was recognised
as equity as at 31 March 2016. The promissory notes are
interest-bearing of 10% per annum and repayable within two
years and its carrying amount was approximately HK$426.6
million. Other borrowings of the Group comprised loans
from independent third parties amounting to HK$7.0 million
with 12% annual interest and RMB5.0 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$6.0 million) with 5% annual interest. Both
of them are repayable within 1 year.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had banking facilities of
HK$60.0 million (2015: HK$189.0 million) which was not
utilised and was secured by corporate guarantees from the
Company amounted to HK$60.0 million (2015: HK$189.0
million).

When compared with the Group’s financial position as
at 31 March 2015, the net current assets decreased by
approximately 21.0% to approximately HK$176.2 million
(2015: approximately HK$223.1 million) while net assets
increased by approximately 135.7% to approximately
HK$533.0 million (2015: approximately HK$226.1 million) as
at 31 March 2016.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE, FINANCIAL RESOURCES,
LIQUIDITY AND GEARING (Cont'd)

Current ratio of the Group was maintained at a healthy level
at 1.6 times as at 31 March 2016 (2015: 2.5 times). Current
ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current
liabilities.

Gearing ratio is calculated based on the amount of net cash
and bank balances (interest-bearing borrowings, liability
component of the convertible bonds and promissory
notes less cash and cash equivalent) divided by the total
equity. As at 31 March 2016, the Group’s gearing ratio was
therefore 143.2% (2015: 0%).

CHANGE OF CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

Referring to the joint announcement dated 16 June 2015,
the Company was informed by Profit Chain Investments
Limited (the “"Vendor”) on 5 June 2015 that the Vendor,
Youth Force Asia Ltd. (the "Youth Force”) and Vantage
International (Holdings) Limited (“Vantage”) had entered
into the sale and purchase agreement (the “SPA1"),
pursuant to which the Vendor had agreed to sell and
Youth Force had agreed to purchase 150,000,000 shares
of the Company, representing 75.0% of the entire issued
share capital of the Company. Pursuant to Rule 26.1 of the
Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers, upon the
completion of the SPA1, Youth Force would be required to
make a mandatory unconditional cash offer (the “"Offer”) for
all other issued shares of the Company.

On 10 August 2015, Youth Force and the Company jointly
announced that the Offer was closed and Youth Force
received valid acceptances in respect of a total of 228 shares
under the Offer. On 13 August 2015, the Company was
informed by Youth Force, being the controlling shareholder
of the Company, that it has disposed of an aggregate of 228
shares on the open market for the purpose of restoring the
public float of the Company.
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INVESTMENT POSITION AND PLANNING

On 12 October 2015, Future Marvel Limited, a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Purchaser
1"), the guarantor and the vendor, Power Expert Global
Limited (“Power Expert”), entered into the Engines SPA,
pursuant to which the Purchaser 1 has conditionally agreed
to acquire, and Power Expert has conditionally agreed to
sell the Automotive Engines Group for the consideration
of HK$800.0 million. The consideration was satisfied (i)
as to HK$410.0 million by way of issue of the promissory
notes; and (ii) as to HK$390.0 million by way of issue of the
convertible bonds with the conversion price of HK$2.0 per
consideration share. The principal business activities of the
target group were engaged in the development, production
and sales of automotive engines. The completion of this
acquisition took place on 4 February 2016.

On 24 May 2016, Global Harvest Inc. a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company (the “Purchaser 2") as purchaser
entered into another sale and purchase agreement (the
“Wheels SPA") with Mr. Zhang Yong (“"Mr. Zhang"), an
independent third party of the Group, as vendor. Pursuant
to which, the Purchaser 2 has conditionally agreed to
acquire and Mr. Zhang has conditionally agreed to sell
the entire issued share capital of Keenmount Limited
("Keenmount”) and all the liabilities, loans and obligations
owing by Keenmount and its subsidiaries in an aggregate
consideration of HK$390.0 million, which shall be satisfied
to Mr. Zhang by issue of convertible bonds in the principle
amount of HK$390.0 million at completion. Keenmount
and its subsidiaries intend to be principally engaged in the
assembly of automotive wheels and tyres and supply of
assembled wheels and tyres to automotive manufacturers.
Details of the transaction are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 24 May 2016.
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CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 4 February 2016, the Company issued zero coupon
convertible bonds with an aggregate principal amount
of HK$390.0 million to Power Expert as part of the
consideration for the Engines Acquisition. The maturity date
of the convertible bonds is on the second anniversary of
the date of issuance (i.e. 3 February 2018). The convertible
bonds bear no interest on the principal amount. No security
or guarantee is granted in respect of the convertible bonds.
The convertible bonds can be converted into 195,000,000
ordinary shares in the Company at the initial conversion
price of HK$2.00 per conversion share (subject to
adjustment pursuant to the terms of the convertible bonds).
The Company may at any time before the maturity date
by written notice redeem the convertible bonds at 100%
of the principal amount. Any amount of the convertible
bonds which is redeemed by the Company will forthwith
be cancelled. At 31 March 2016, no convertible bonds were
converted and the outstanding principal amount of the
convertible bonds was HK$390.0 million.

As at 31 March 2016, the convertible bonds with an
aggregate principal amount of HK$390.0 million were
deposited with an escrow agent in favour of the Company
as security for the 1st Guaranteed Profit (i.e. HK$170.0
million for the year ending 28 February 2017) and the 2nd
Guaranteed Profit (i.e. HK$230.0 million for the year ending
28 February 2018). The convertible bonds in the principal
amounts of HK$165,750,000 and HK$224,250,000 shall be
released to Power Expert if the audited consolidated profits
after tax of the Automotive Engines Group for the two years
ending 28 February 2017 and 2018 are equal to or more
than the 1st Guaranteed Profit and the 2nd Guaranteed
Profit, respectively, after the issue of the auditors’ certificate
for each period.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Detail of the Group’s contingent liabilities are set out in
note 35 to the financial statements.

R ES

RZZB-—XRF_AMBE - ARFMITERKE
114 & #8585 /3390,000,000/8 T E B AT AR (E
7 DESBRIRBBFEHENBONE - AJ R
BREFNIHARETARNE _EBESF (A
“E-N\F-_A=H)  IBRKREFNATRE
WAGR o BEERL AT R E H R R 2
R o AR R E 75 Al IR IR 1) P 1R B B R AR ik
172.00/8 7T (B FARE AT E S N IRRFE)
HOOR N R A #9195,000,0000% E AR o A A
BRI AR A ATBE R BB BB AR AN SN
1009 @ A #2 (& 75 2N 2 &) P g [ &9 4 )
SRR E SR - R T —RF
ZA=1+—B  SEARRESELE - A
B EZFRAREE AL E S390,000,000/8 7T °

R-ZTE—RNE=ZA=+—H AL p5m=E
390,000,000 7T 2 7] # IR & 5 1 LA RN R &) A&
Xm ATATERE  UMEASE —TBRE R
MEBE—_E—+F_A-_+N\BILEEA
170,000,000 7t) Kk E ZBERFZF R (AEZE
—E—-NF A=+ /B IFE A230,000,000
Bir) 2HEF - MAERPRERNEBE_T
—+ER_E-N\E-_A-+N\BIREEE
ZEBIZIREBRB A RF D BHER KBRS
—BRFEMNRE ZBERBZES - AAREH
B3 HIZ AR - ANeFH3E165,750,0007%8
7T }224,250,0007 70 2 AT AR EH S & R T
T9EEIREK ©

RAERE
B Y SRR A BB R R A
35¢

Annual Report 2015/16 —Z—F /— /N &4 17



Management Discussion and Analysis
BERENWR D

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

Most of the Group's assets and liabilities are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi, which are the functional
currencies of respective group companies. The Group has
not entered into any instruments on the foreign exchange
exposure. The Group will closely monitor exchange rate
movement and will take appropriate activities to reduce the
exchange risk.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had approximately 750
employees (2015: 420) in Hong Kong and the PRC. The
Group’s remuneration policy is reviewed periodically
and determined by reference to market terms, company
performance, and individual qualifications and performance.
Other staff benefits include bonuses awarded on a
discretionary basis, mandatory provident fund scheme for
Hong Kong employees, state-sponsored retirement plans
for PRC employees.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

ESNEREEREE

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Hin Shek, aged 46, was appointed as an executive
Director and the chairman of the Board on 20 July 2015 and
10 August 2015 respectively. Mr. Wong is also the chairman
of the nomination committee of the Company. He has over
21 years of experience in the investment banking industry.
Mr. Wong obtained a Bachelor of Commerce Degree from
University of Toronto in Canada and a Master of Science
(Financial Management) Degree from University of London
in United Kingdom. Mr. Wong is also a responsible officer
of Veda Capital Limited, a licensed corporation which
carries out Type 6 (advising on corporate finance) regulated
activity under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO"). He has been involved in the management, business
development and strategic investment of listed companies
in Hong Kong. Mr. Wong is currently the chairman and an
executive director of each of DeTai New Energy Group
Limited (stock code: 559) and Sino Golf Holdings Limited
(stock code: 361). The shares of these companies are listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Mr. Wong was an executive
director of KuangChi Science Limited (formerly known as
“Climax International Company Limited"”) (stock code: 439)
from June 2007 to August 2014, the shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Xing Bin, aged 28, was appointed as an executive
Director on 11 September 2015. Mr. Xing holds a Bachelor's
Degree of Business Administration in Accounting from
Peking University. Mr. Xing has over 5 years of solid
experiences in the field of finance from his past work
experiences.
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ESENEREERBEE

DIRECTORS (Cont'd)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Chu Yin Yin, Georgiana, aged 45, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 20 July 2015.
Ms. Chu is also a member of each of the audit committee,
the remuneration committee and the nomination committee
of the Company. She obtained a Bachelor of Business
Administration Degree in Accountancy from The University
of Hong Kong and a Master of Corporate Governance
Degree from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
Ms. Chu is a fellow member of both the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Association of
the Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.
Ms. Chu is also a fellow member of both the Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and the Hong
Kong Institute of Company Secretaries. Prior to joining
the Company, she has over 16 years' extensive experience
by working in an international audit firm and other listed
companies. Ms. Chu is currently an executive director of
1129)
and an independent non-executive director of Sino Golf
Holdings Limited (stock code: 361). The shares of these
companies are listed on the Main Board of the Stock

China Water Industry Group Limited (stock code:

Exchange.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

ESNEREEREE

DIRECTORS (Cont'd)

Independent Non-executive Directors (Cont’d)

Mr. Yip Tai Him, aged 45, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 20 July 2015. Mr. Yip is also
the chairman of the remuneration committee of the
Company, a member of each of the audit committee and
the nomination committee of the Company. He has been a
practising accountant in Hong Kong since 1999. Mr. Yip is
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in the United Kingdom and the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. He has over
20 years of experience in accounting, auditing and financial
management. Mr. Yip is currently an independent non-
executive director of each of China Communication Telecom
Services Company Limited (stock code: 8206), Vinco
Financial Group Limited (stock code: 8340), GCL-Poly Energy
Holdings Limited (stock code: 3800), Redco Properties
Group Limited (stock code: 1622) and Sino Golf Holdings
Limited (stock code: 361). The shares of these companies
are listed on the Main Board or the Growth Enterprise
Market (the "GEM'") of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Yip was
an independent non-executive director of each of Lajin
Entertainment Network Group Limited (previously known as
China Media and Films Holdings Limited) (stock code: 8172)
from December 2008 to April 2015, iOne Holdings Limited
(stock code: 982) from April 2009 to July 2014, MEGA
MEDICAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED (stock code: 876) from
February 2001 to June 2014 and Larry Jewelry International
Company Limited (stock code: 8351) from May 2014 to
October 2014 and a non-executive director of Larry Jewelry
International Company Limited (stock code: 8351) from April
2014 to May 2014. The shares of these companies are listed
on the Main Board or GEM of the Stock Exchange.
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ESENEREERBEE

DIRECTORS (Cont’'d)

Independent Non-executive Directors (Cont’d)

Mr. Chan Kai Wing, aged 55, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 20 July 2015.
Mr. Chan is also the chairman of the audit committee of
the Company, a member of each of the remuneration
committee and the nomination committee of the Company.
He obtained a Bachelor's Degree in Economics from
Macquarie University in Sydney, Australia in April 1986.
Mr. Chan is a fellow member of CPA Australia. Mr. Chan is
currently the managing director and founder of Mandarin
Capital Enterprise Limited, a company specialised in
the provision of financial advisory services in the area
of accounting, merger and acquisition and corporate
restructuring for both listed and private companies in Hong
Kong and the PRC, whose clients include companies in the
real estate development industry and dairy industry etc.
He is currently an independent non-executive director of
each of China Conch Venture Holdings Limited (stock code:
586), China Assurance Finance Group Limited (stock code:
8090) and Sino Golf Holdings Limited (stock code: 361). The
shares of these companies are listed on the Main Board or
GEM of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chan worked in the audit
department of Ernst & Young in Hong Kong from 1988 to
1991. He was also a director and the financial controller
of Shenzhen China Bicycle Company (Holdings) Limited, a
listed company in the PRC from 1991 to 1999.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

ESNEREEREE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Wong Po Ling, Pauline, aged 38, was appointed as
the Company Secretary on 10 August 2015. She obtained
a bachelor's degree in accountancy and a master degree
in corporate governance from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. She is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales. She is also a member
of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrator,
the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. Ms. Wong has over 15
years of experience in financial management, mergers and

acquisitions and corporate governance matters.

Mr. Lee Yan Fai, aged 31, was appointed as Financial
Controller on 20 August 2015. He obtained a bachelor
degree in accounting. He is a practicing member of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
member of Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute.
Mr. Lee has 10 years of solid experiences in the area of
accounting, merger and acquisition and initial public
offering for both listed and private companies in Hong
Kong and the PRC by working in international audit firms
and other listed company prior to joining the Company.

Mr. Lai Kon Ting, aged 36, is the Contracts Manager of
our Group, responsible for implementation of works and
the overall management of contracts. Mr. Lai obtained
a Bachelor Degree in Civil and Structural Engineering
in November 2001 from the Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology and Degree of Master of Science
in Engineering (Infrastructure Project Management) from
The University of Hong Kong in November 2014. He is
a Chartered Engineer of Engineering Council, United
Kingdom and a corporate member of the Institution of Civil
Engineers and the HKIE as well as a Registered Professional
Engineer (Civil). He has over 10 years of experience in
the construction of roads and utilities works, landslip
prevention, waterworks and building works. He is also a
Tutor for Excel in the HKIE Engineering Graduate Training
(Scheme A) for graduate engineers.
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ESENEREERBEE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

Mr. Wong Kin Sang, aged 36, is the Project Manager of
our Group, responsible for all activities on site to ensure
the efficient running of a project and effective use of
resources. Mr. Wong obtained a Bachelor Degree in Civil
and Structural Engineering in November 2002 from the
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology. He is a
corporate member of the HKIE. He has over 10 years of
experience in the construction of waterworks, roads and
utilities works, landslip prevention and building works. He
is also a Tutor for Excel in the HKIE Engineering Graduate
Training (Scheme A) for graduate engineers.

Mr. Wong Kin Yan, aged 46, is the Environmental
and Quality Manager of our Group, responsible for
the implementation and maintenance of our Group's
environmental and quality management systems.
Mr. Wong obtained a Bachelor Degree in Applied Science in
December 1994 from Hong Kong Baptist University. He is a
Chartered Environmentalist and a corporate member of the
Society of Environmental Engineers. He has over 15 years of
experience in the environmental and quality management
in the construction field. He is the Management
Representative of Excel’s ISO 9001 Quality Management
System and ISO 14001 Environmental Management System.
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Corporate Governance Report

SREBEE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests
of Shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability. The Company has adopted the Corporate
Governance Code (the "CG Code") contained in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the "Listing Rules”) since 11 December
2013, the date on which dealings in its shares (the “Shares”)
first commence on the Stock Exchange.

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company has
complied with the code provisions set out in the CG Code
with the following exception:

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Since 10 August 2015,
the Company did not have any officer with the title of Chief
Executive Officer. The overall responsibility of supervising
and ensuring that the Group functions in line with the
order of the Board in terms of day-to-day operations and
execution is vested in the Board itself.

Under Code Provision A.6.7, independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors should attend
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of
the views of the shareholders.

For the extraordinary general meetings of the Company
held on 4 February 2016 and 24 March 2016, the whole
Board attended the meetings to ensure an effective
communication with the Shareholders at that meetings
except that Mr. Chan Kai Wing (independent non-executive
Director and chairman of audit committee of the Company)
was unable to attend the extraordinary general meetings
due to unavoidable business commitment.

The Company regularly reviews its corporate governance
practices to ensure they comply with the CG Code and align
with the latest developments.
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THE BOARD

Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the
Group, oversees the strategic decisions and monitors
business and performance of the Group. The Board has
delegated the authority and responsibility for day-to-day
management and operation of the Group to the senior
management of the Group. Approval has to be obtained
from the Board prior to any significant transactions entered
into by the management. To oversee particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs, the Board has established three
Board committees including the audit committee (the
“Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee
(the "Nomination Committee”) (together, the “Board
Committees”). The Board has delegated to the Board
Committees responsibilities as set out in their respective
terms of reference.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good
faith, in compliance with applicable laws and regulations,
and in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders
at all times.

Board Composition

As at 31 March 2016, the Board is composed of five
Directors, including two executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. The biographical
details of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”
on pages 19 to 24 of this annual report.

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the Board at all times
met the requirements of the Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors with at least one
independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.
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SREBEE

THE BOARD (Cont’'d)

Board Composition (Cont'd)

The Company has also complied with Rule 3.10A of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of independent
non-executive Directors representing at least one-third of
the Board.

The Board has assessed the independence of all the
independent non-executive Directors. Having considered
the guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules,
the Board considers all of them to be independent having
regard to (i) their annual confirmation on independence
as required under the Listing Rules; (ii) the absence of
involvement in the daily management of the Company; (iii)
the absence of any relationships or circumstances which
would interfere with the exercise of their independent
judgment; and (iv) the absence of remuneration from the
Company other than the directors’ fee.

All Directors, including independent non-executive
Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable
business experience, knowledge and professionalism to
the Board for its efficient and effective functioning. All
Directors have separate and independent access to the
advices and services of the senior management and the
company secretary with a view to ensuring that board
procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations, are
followed. When needed and upon making request to the
Board, the independent non-executive Directors may obtain
independent professional advice at the Company’s expense
in carrying out their duties.

Saved as disclosed in the “Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management” section of this annual report,
there are no relationships (including financial, business,
family or other material or relevant relationships) among
members of the Board.
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THE BOARD (Cont'd)

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The position of the Chairman was held by Mr. Yau Kwok
Fai while the position of Chief Executive Officer was held
by Mr. Li Chi Pong during the period from 1 April 2015 to
10 August 2015. Mr. Wong Hin Shek started to act as the
Chairman from 10 August 2015. Since then, the Company
did not have any officer with the title of Chief Executive
Officer. The overall responsibility of supervising and
ensuring that the Group functions in line with the order of
the Board in terms of day-to-day operations and execution
is vested in the Board itself.

The Board is of the view that there exists a balance of power
and authority and will review the current practice from time
to time and make appropriate changes if necessary.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Chairman has
met with the independent non-executive Directors without
the executive Directors present.

Directors’ Training and Continuous Professional
Development

Every Director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a director
of the Company and of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Company. The Company continuously
updates the Directors on the Group's businesses and the
latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements, to ensure compliance
and enhance their awareness of good corporate governance
practices.

According to the Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code,
all Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure that their contribution to the board remains
informed and relevant.

The Company has requested from each director and

maintained their records of training received during the year
end 31 March 2016.
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THE BOARD (Cont'd)

Directors’ Training and Continuous Professional

Development (Cont’d)

During the year ended 31 March 2016, all Directors pursued
continuous professional development and relevant details

are set out below:

Name of Directors

EENS

Exg (&)
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REBEE-_ZT—XF=A=+—HILFE FH
EEHE2HBERXRE  ZEHEBERT
N

Types of training
&R

Executive Directors:
Mr. Wong Hin Shek (Chairman)

(appointed on 20 July 2015)
Mr. Xing Bin (appointed on 11 September 2015)
Mr. Li Chi Pong (resigned on 10 August 2015)
Mr. Poon Yan Min (resigned on 10 August 2015)

Non-Executive Director:
Mr. Yau Kwok Fai
(resigned on 10 August 2015)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Ms. Chu Yin Yin Georgiana
(appointed on 20 July 2015)
Mr. Yip Tai Him (appointed on 20 July 2015)
Mr. Chan Kai Wing (appointed on 20 July 2015)
Dr. Law Kwok Sang (resigned on 10 August 2015)
Professor Patrick Wong Lung Tak, B.B.S., J.P.
(resigned on 10 August 2015)
Ms. Mak Suk Hing (resigned on 10 August 2015)

Remarks:
A — Attending seminars/conferences/forums

B — Reading journals/updates/articles/materials

FHTES:
HEELE (RZT—AFN\A+HET)

ERRF#EE (RZE—REEAZTHRZM)
RéREE (R_T-—AFLtA-THEZE)
ZRART (R-F—0F/\A+HEE)

FRmELEE ()
(RZZ-AFtA-TREE) A,
WEEE (RZE—RFNA+—BZEE)
BRALE (RZE—AF/\A+HEHE)
ERRLE (RZT—AFN\A+HET) A,

>
W W W W

BYFHTES:
AEEZT (R-_T-AFLtA-THZME)

> > >
W W W w

L A (5 ==

WEHEE A FHL
(R=T-RFN\ATHEE)
EREz T (RZE—RFEN\A+HEHT) B

>
w

5EAE

A— HERNTE &% wiE

B — BIEMIT) BITAR S XE AR

Annual Report 2015/16 —Z—F /— /N &4 29



Corporate Governance Report
ERER®RE

THE BOARD (Cont'd)

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the Directors has signed a letter of appointment
with the Company, which does not specify any fixed term of
service and may be terminated by either party giving to the
other not less than one-month prior notice in writing. They
are also subject to retirement and re-election at annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with the
Articles of Association of the Company (the "Articles”).

According to the Articles, the Board has the power at any
time to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a
casual vacancy or as an additional Director. Any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold
office until the first general meeting of the Company
after his appointment and be subject to re-election at
such meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board as an
addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until
the next following annual general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election. Besides, at every
annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the
time being, or if their number is not a multiple of three, the
number nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least
once every three years.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election
and removal of Directors are set out in the Articles. The
Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the
Board composition, monitoring the appointment, re-election
and succession planning of Directors.
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THE BOARD (Cont'd)

Meetings

Code Provision A.1.1 prescribes that at least four
regular board meetings should be held in each year at
approximately quarterly intervals with active participation of
majority of Directors, either in person or through electronic
means of communication.

The Company convened and held twenty three Board
meetings during the year ended 31 March 2016.

Additional Board meetings will be convened, as and when
required, to deal with ad hoc issues. Any Director who is
not able to present physically may participate at any Board
meeting through electronic means of communication, such
as conference telephone or other similar communication
equipment, in accordance with the Articles.

Notice convening each regular Board meeting is sent at
least 14 days in advance, and reasonable notice is given
for other Board meetings and committee meetings. The
Company Secretary assists the Chairman to prepare the
meeting notice and agenda. Each Director may include any
item in the agenda. The agenda, accompanied by meeting
papers with sufficient and reliable information, are sent to
each Director at least 3 days before each Board meeting
or committee meeting to enable the Directors to make
informed decisions on the matters to be discussed, except
where a Board meeting or committee meeting is convened
on a very urgent basis to consider any urgent ad hoc matter.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking and
keeping minutes of all Board meetings and committee
meetings. Draft minutes will normally be circulated to
Directors for comment within a reasonable time after
each meeting and the final version is open for Directors’
inspection.
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During the year ended 31 March 2016, twenty three WREHZE-_T—<XE=ZA=+—HIFE £
Board meetings, three Audit Committee meetings, two ﬁf‘f“—/)\i oo —hEZKEEee
Remuneration Committee meetings, three Nomination R MEEeeE  —KELEESee
Comm|tte§ megtmgs 'aﬂd fou,r general meetings were h'eld. aﬁ&@//\ﬂxﬁﬁ cHBEEREEEEZEe
Details of |r1d|V|dua| Dlrgctors attendance at these meetings Sl SR EI AT
are set out in the following table:
Attended/Eligible to attend
BHERE/ AHERE
Audit  Remuneration  Nomination
Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee General
Directors Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
EH ) k%
gz gzged  z8ef Z8ed3  ZE8e¢ LSV
Executive Directors: UrEs
Mr. Wong Hin Shek (Chairman) IBERE (28) N/A N/A
(appointed on 20 July 2015) (R-E-RE+A-THEA) 15/16 TER TER 1 33
Mr. Xing Bin WELE N/A N/A N/A
(appointed on 11 September 2015) (RZE-RENAT-HZA) 509 TER TER TER 33
Mr. Li Chi Pong k3 N/A N/A
(resigned on 10 August 2015) (R=B-RE/\ATBEE) 57 MR 11 MR /1
Mr. Poon Yan Min REBLE N/A N/A N/A
(resigned on 10 August 2015) (R=B-RE/\RTEET) 517 TR ER MEA 0/
Non-Executive Director: FHUTES
M. Yau Kwok Fai HEEEE N/A N/A
(resigned on 10 August 2015) (RZEB-RENRTHET) 5/7 TER TR 22 11
Independent Non-Executive Directors: ~ BUFH{TES
Ms. Chu Yin Yin Georgiana RERLL
(appointed on 20 July 2015) (R=Z-RFtA-TRZH) 15/1 202 N 1 33
Mr. Yip Tai Him L3 E ik
(appointed on 20 July 2015) (R=Z-RFtE-1RHEA) 9/16 202 17 11 3/3
Mr. Chan Kai Wing BiELE
(appointed on 20 July 2015) (R=Z-RE+A-TRZfA) 6/16 212 N i 113
Dr. Law Kwok Sang REARL
(resigned on 10 August 2015) (RZZ-RENATRER) i 17 i 22 17
Professor Patrick Wong Lung Tak, HEEHR
BB.S, J.P. HEHEE A FHL
(resigned on 10 August 2015) (R=B-R%/\RTEET) 27 17 171 22 17
Ms. Mak Suk Hing il e
(resigned on 10 August 2015) (R=Z-RE/\A+HET) 17 N N 202 N

N/A: Not applicable
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Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code") set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Specific
enquiries have been made to all the Directors and the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
Model Code during the year ended 31 March 2016.

The Company's employees, who are likely to be in
possession of inside information of the Company, have also
subjected to the Model Code for securities transactions.
No incident of non-compliance of the Model Code by the
employees was noted by the Company.

Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management
The Company has established a formal and transparent
procedure for formulating policies on remuneration of
Directors and senior management of the Group. Details
of the remuneration of each of the Directors for the year
ended 31 March 2016 are set out in note 8 to the financial
statements.

The biographies of the senior management are disclosed in
the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” in this annual report. Remuneration
paid to the senior management (excluding the Directors) for
the year ended 31 March 2016 are included in note 9 to the

financial statements.

Directors’ Liability Insurance

The Company purchases annually the Directors’ and officers’
liability insurance for members of the Board. The insurance
cover is reviewed annually to ensure that the Directors
and officers are adequately protected against potential
liabilities.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has set up three Board Committees, namely, the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee, to oversee particular aspects of the
Company's affairs.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Cont'd)
Audit Committee
The Audit Committee was established in compliance with

Rules 3.21 and 3.22 of the Listing Rules and Code Provision
C.3.3 of the CG Code.

The full terms of reference of the Audit Committee
are available on the Stock Exchange's website and the
Company's website.

As at 31 March 2016, the Audit Committee is made up
of three independent non-executive Directors,
Mr. Chan Kai Wing, Ms. Chu Yin Yin Georgiana and
Mr. Yip Tai Him. Mr. Chan Kai Wing is the Chairman of the
Audit Committee. Mr. Chan Kai Wing is a certified public
accountant and possesses the appropriate accounting

namely

qualifications and experiences in financial matters.

The Audit Committee meets at least twice annually and
also meets with the Company’s external auditor at least
twice annually to discuss the audit plan and to review the
Company’s annual report and accounts. During the year
ended 31 March 2016, the Audit Committee held three
meetings.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include, but not
limited to:

e make recommendation to the Board on the

appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any
questions of the resignation or the dismissal of that

auditor;

e review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit
process and reporting obligations in accordance with
applicable standards;

e discuss with the auditors the nature and scope of

the audit and reporting obligations before the audit

commences;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Cont'd)
Audit Committee (Cont’'d)

develop and implement policy on engaging an external
auditor to supply non-audit services;

act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the external auditor;

monitor the integrity of financial statements of
the Company and the Company’s annual report
and accounts, half-year report and, if prepared for
publication, quarterly reports, and to review significant
financial reporting judgements contained in them;

review arrangements employees of the Company can
use, in confidence to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or
other matters;

review the Company's financial controls, internal control
and risk management systems;

discuss the internal control system with management
to ensure that management has performed its duties to
have an effective internal control system;

review the Group's financial and accounting policies
and practices; and

review the external auditor's management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management
about accounting records, financial accounts or systems
of control and management's response.

Audit Committee also reviewed final results of the Company
and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March 2016 as
well as the audit report prepared by the external auditor

relating to accounting issues and major findings in course of
audit.
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Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee was established in

compliance with Rules 3.25 and 3.26 of the Listing Rules and
Code Provision B.1.2 of the CG Code.

The full terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
are available on the Stock Exchange's website and the
Company's website.

As at 31 March 2016, the Remuneration Committee is
made up of three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Yip Tai Him, Ms. Chu Yin Yin Georgiana and
Mr. Chan Kai Wing. Mr. Yip Tai Him is the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a
year to review the remuneration of Directors and make
recommendations to the Board. During the year ended
31 March 2016, two meetings of the Remuneration
Committee were held.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include,
but not limited to:

e make recommendations to the Board on the Company'’s
policy and structure for the remuneration packages of
Directors and senior management;

e determine with delegated responsibility the
remuneration packages of individual Directors and
senior management;

e review and approve compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or
termination of office; and

e review and approve compensation arrangements

relating to dismissal or removal of Directors for
misconduct.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Cont'd)

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established in compliance
with Code Provision A.5.1 and A.5.2 of the CG Code.

The full terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
are available on the Stock Exchange's website and the
Company's website.

As at 31 March 2016, the Nomination Committee is made
up of three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Ms. Chu Yin Yin Georgiana, Mr. Yip Tai Him and Mr. Chan
Kai Wing and one executive Director, namely Mr. Wong Hin
Shek. Mr. Wong Hin Shek is the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

The Nomination Committee will be held at least once a
year. During the year ended 31 March 2016, three meetings
of the Nomination Committee were held.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include,
but not limited to:

* review the structure, size, composition and diversity
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board at least annually and make recommendations to
the Board in order to maintain an appropriate range
and balance of skills, knowledge and experience of the
Board;

e identify individuals suitably qualified to become
Directors and select or make recommendations to
the Board on the selection of, individuals nominated
for directorships. In identifying suitable candidates, a
range of diversity perspectives with reference to the
Company’s business model and specific needs will be
considered, including but not limited to gender, age,
culture, race, educational background, professional
experience, knowledge and skills;

e assess the independence of independent non-
executive Directors;
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Nomination Committee (Cont’'d)

e make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors; and

e conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation
that may from time to time be prescribed by the Board
or contained in the constitution of the Company or
imposed by the Listing Rules or applicable law.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for, amongst other things, the
development and review of the policies and practices
on corporate governance of the Group and monitoring
the compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management, and reviewing the corporate governance
compliance with the Code Provisions and disclosure in the
annual report.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING IN RESPECT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company and of the Group
for the year ended 31 March 2016, which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group on a going concern basis. The Board is provided with
explanations and information by the senior management
of the Company, so that the Directors have an informed
assessment of the financial and other information of the
Group putting forward to the Board for discussion and
approval.

To the best of the Directors’
uncertainty relating to events or conditions that may cast

knowledge, there is no

significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a

going concern.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING IN RESPECT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

The external auditors of the Company acknowledge their
reporting responsibilities in their independent auditors’
report on the financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2016 as set out in the Independent Auditors’
Report on pages 74 to 75 of the annual report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

In respect of the year ended 31 March 2016, the
remuneration paid and payable to the Company’s external
auditors, Ernst & Young, is set out below:

EESHBYBRROMBHREIE (B)

ARBZINEZBENE AR FREBTAETSE RS
VRZEERET  BEREFHEBEE_FT KX
FZAZT—HALEFEMBRROPBFEL -

3 Gl
BE—T-—AF=A=+—HLLEE £27F
B 1 R BB A5 NI AR B AT 2 5k B 7 36 755 T 0 B
WO

HK$'000

FAET

Audit service EZRTE 1,750
Non-audit services: IEEZ RIS -

Taxation and other services T N E M AR 7S 728

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the
Board for maintaining an adequate internal control system
to safeguard Shareholders investments and the Company’s
assets and reviewing the effectiveness of such system on an
annual basis. The Board has entrusted the Audit Committee
with the responsibility to review the internal control systems
of the Group, which include financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management aspects of the
Group.

During the year under review, the Board has conducted
review on the effectiveness of the internal control system of
the Group through discussion with the Audit Committee on
audit findings and control issues. These procedures provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
errors, losses and fraud, and manage rather than eliminate
risks of failure in the Group's operational systems and in the
achievement of the Group's business objectives.

The Board has also considered the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company'’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their
training programs.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Liu Shiu Yuen, who had been the company secretary of
the Company, resigned from such position on 10 August
2015. Ms. Wong Po Ling, Pauline (“Ms. Wong") was
appointed as the company secretary of the Company to fill
the vacancy on 10 August 2015.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, Ms. Wong has
complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules by taking no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations
and understanding of the Group’s business, performance
and strategies. The Company also recognises the
importance of timely disclosure of information, which will
enable Shareholders and investors to make the informed
investment decisions. The various channels via which the
Company communicates with its Shareholders include
interim and annual reports, information on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company, annual general
meeting and other general meeting that may be convened.

The annual general meeting of the Company provides
opportunity for Shareholders to communicate directly with
the Directors. The Chairman of the Board and the Chairman
of the Board Committees will attend the annual general
meeting to answer Shareholders’ questions. The external
auditor of the Company will also attend the annual general
meeting to answer questions about the conduct of the
audit, the preparation and contents of the auditors’ report,
the accounting policies and auditor independence.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution will be proposed for each substantial issue at
general meetings, including the election of individual
Directors.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted
on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will
be posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company after each general meeting.

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their
shareholdings to the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar and transfer office, namely, Tricor Investor Services
Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road
East, Hong Kong. Shareholders who wish to put enquiries
to the Board can send their enquiries to the Company
Secretary of the Company who will ensure these enquiries
to be properly directed to the Board. Shareholders may at
any time make a request for the Company’s information to
the extent such information is publicly available.

Convening of Extraordinary General Meetings and
Putting Forward Proposals

In accordance with the Articles, an extraordinary general
meeting shall be convened on the requisition of one or
more Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company.

Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or
the Company Secretary of the Company for the purpose of
requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within 2 months
after the deposit of such requisition.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Cont’d)

Convening of Extraordinary General Meetings and
Putting Forward Proposals (Cont'd)

If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, the
procedures are available on the website of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no amendment made to the memorandum
and articles of association of the Company during the
year ended 31 March 2016. The latest version of the
constitutional documents of the Company is available on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY
VANTAGE

For details, please refer to the section headed “Non-
Competition Undertaking by Vantage” of “Report of the
Directors”.
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Report of the Directors
ESERE

The Directors of the Company are pleased to present their
report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are investment
holding and the provision of corporate management
During the year ended 31 March 2016, the
Company's principal subsidiaries were engaged in the

services.

business of (i) civil engineering works and building
construction and maintenance; and (ii) development,
production and sale of automotive engines.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income on page 76 of the annual
report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group's business, particulars of
important events affecting the Group that have occurred
during the year ended 31 March 2016, and an indication
of likely future development in the Group's business, are
set out in the “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report. A description
of principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group is set

out in the note 40 to the financial statements.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

Our commitment to protecting the environment is well
reflected by our continuous efforts in promoting green
measures and awareness in our daily business operations.
Our Group encourages environmental protection and
promote awareness towards environmental protection to
the employees. Our Group also implements green office
practices such as promoting the use of recycled papers and
reducing energy consumption by switching off idle lighting
and electrical appliances.

Our Group will review its environmental practices from time
to time and will consider implementing further eco-friendly
measures and practices in the operation of our Group's
businesses and enhance environmental sustainability.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year, as far as the Company is aware, there was
no material breach of or non-compliance with applicable
laws and regulations by our Group that has a significant
impact on the business and operations of our Group.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Company recognises that employees are our valuable
assets. Thus our Group provides competitive remuneration
package to attract and motivate the employees. Our Group
regularly reviews the remuneration package of employees
and makes necessary adjustments to conform to the market
standard.

Our Group also understands that it is important to maintain
good relationship with business partners to achieve its
long-term goals. Accordingly, our senior management have
kept good communication, promptly exchanged ideas and
shared business update with them when appropriate. During
the year, there was no material and significant dispute
between our Group and its business partners.
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Report of the Directors
ESERE

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2016 (2015: Nil).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years ended
31 March 2016 is set out on page 180 of this annual report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director shall be entitled to
be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against
all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur
in or about the execution of the duties of his/her office or
otherwise in relation thereto. There is appropriate directors’
and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the directors
and officers of the Group.

DEBENTURES

Details of the convertible bonds and the promissory notes
issued by the Group are set out in notes 27 and 28 to the
financial statements. Save for the above, the Group did not
issue any debentures during the year ended 31 March 2016.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme as disclosed in the below
section headed “Share Option Scheme” and the section
headed “Convertible Bonds” of “Management Discussion
and Analysis”, no equity-linked agreements were entered
into by the Group, or existed during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group were entered into or existed during
the year.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Major Customers

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the largest customer
accounted for approximately 42.8% (2015: 49.3%) of
the Group’s total revenues. The five largest customers
accounted for approximately 88.8% (2015: 94.6%) of the
Group's total revenues for the year ended 31 March 2016.

For the civil engineering and construction segment,
the customer base is relatively concentrated to certain
departments of the Government, public utilities companies
and private organisations in Hong Kong. The largest
customer was engaged in this segment. For the newly
automotive engines business, two of its customers became
the second and third largest customer who represented
approximately 23.3% of the Group's total revenue.

None of our Directors or their respective associates or any
Shareholder (to the knowledge of our Directors) holding
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital had
any interest in the five largest customers.

Major Suppliers

The Group five largest suppliers being its sub-contractors
together accounted for approximately 68.2% (2015: 98.5%)
of the Group's total sub-contracting fees charged to the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2016. The largest sub-
contractor accounted for approximately 21.0% (2015: 28.8%)
of the total sub-contracting fees charged to the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2016.

Other than as set out in the paragraph above, none of our
Directors or their associates or any Shareholders (to the
knowledge of our Directors) holding more than 5% of the
Company'’s issued share capital had any interests in the five
largest sub-contractors.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 30 to the financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during
the year are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company's reserves available for distribution
to Shareholders as at 31 March 2016 amounted to
approximately HK$11.2 million (2015: HK$84.5 million).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles or the laws of Cayman Islands where the Company
is incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares to existing Shareholders on a pro-rata basis.

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
HK$20,000 (2015: HK$20,000).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities for
the year ended 31 March 2016.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Company’s directors as at
the date of this annual report, the Company has maintained
the prescribed minimum public float under the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the
date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Hin Shek (Chairman)

(appointed on 20 July 2015)
Mr. Xing Bin (appointed on 11 September 2015)
Mr. Li Chi Pong (resigned on 10 August 2015)
Mr. Poon Yan Min (resigned on 10 August 2015)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Yau Kwok Fai (resigned on 10 August 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Chu Yin Yin Georgiana (appointed on 20 July 2015)
Mr. Yip Tai Him (appointed on 20 July 2015)
Mr. Chan Kai Wing (appointed on 20 July 2015)
Dr. Law Kwok Sang (resigned on 10 August 2015)
Professor Patrick Wong Lung Tak, B.B.S., J.P.
(resigned on 10 August 2015)
Ms. Mak Suk Hing (resigned on 10 August 2015)

Mr. Li Chi Pong, Mr. Poon Yan Min, Mr. Yau Kwok Fai,
Dr. Law Kwok Sang, Professor Patrick Wong Lung Tak
B.B.S., J.P. and Ms. Mak Suk Hing resigned as Directors with
effect from 10 August 2015 due to change in control of the
Company. Each of the resigned Directors has confirmed that
he/she has no disagreement with the Board and that there
is no matter in respect of his/her resignation which needs
to be brought to the attention of the Shareholders and the
Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS (Cont'd)

In accordance with the Articles, one-third of the Directors
for the time being (or if their number is not a multiple of
three, the number nearest to but not less than one-third)
will retire from office by rotation and will be eligible for
re-election and re-appointment at every annual general
meeting, provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at an annual general meeting at least
once every three years.

Circular containing details of the Directors to be re-elected
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
will be despatched to the Shareholders in due course.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 19 to 24 of
this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has
confirmed their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Board considered all of the independent
non-executive Directors to be independent in accordance
with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Other than those transactions disclosed in note 37 of
the notes to the financial statements and in the section
“Continuing Connected Transactions” below, no
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
in relation to the Group's business to which any of the
Company’s subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries was a
party, and in which a Director or an entity connected with
a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at any time during the year ended
31 March 2016.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, no Director was interested in any business
apart from the Company’'s business, which competes or
is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
Company’s business which is required to be disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five
highest paid individuals are set out in notes 8 and 9 of the
notes to the financial statements in this annual report.

CHANGES TO INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF
DIRECTORS

Upon specific enquiry by the Company and following
confirmations from the Directors, save as disclosed in the
section headed "Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” in this annual report, there was no
change in the information of the Directors required to
be disclosed pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g)
of Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules for the year ended
31 March 2016.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2016, none of the Directors or chief
executive of the Company had registered an interest or a
short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO)
or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which
were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At the extraordinary general meeting of the Company
held on 24 March 2016, the shareholders of the Company
approved the adoption of the share option scheme of the
Company (the “Scheme”). The relevant listing approval
was granted by the Stock Exchange on 29 March 2016.
A summary of the principal terms of the Scheme are as
follows:

Purpose

The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Company to
grant options to selected eligible participants as incentives
or rewards for their contribution or potential contribution to
the Company.

Participants

The eligible participant(s) of the Scheme is/are full time
or part time employees of the Group (including any
directors, whether executive or non-executive and whether
independent or not, of the Group); and any business or joint
venture partners, contractors, agents or representatives,
consultants, advisers, suppliers, producers or licensors,
customers, licensees (including any sub-licensee) or
distributors, landlords or tenants (including any sub-tenants)
of the Group or any person who, in the sole discretion of
the Board, has contributed or may contribute to the Group.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)

Maximum number of shares

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options which may be granted at any time
under this Scheme together with options which may be
granted under any other share option schemes for the time
being of the Company shall not exceed such number of
Shares as equals 10 per cent. of the issued share capital of
the Company as at the date of approval of the Scheme.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

Unless approved by the shareholders of the Company,
the total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each eligible participants
(including both exercised and outstanding options) in any
12-month period must not exceed 1 per cent. of the Shares
in issue.

Option period

The option period of the Scheme, in respect of any
particular option, the period to be determined and notified
by the Directors to the grantee thereof at the time of
making an offer provided that such period shall not exceed
the period of ten (10) years from the date of the grant of
the particular option but subject to the provisions for early
termination thereof contained herein.

Acceptance of offer

Any offer of the option of the Company may be accepted
by an eligible participant in the duplicate letter of option
grant letter comprising acceptance of the offer duly signed
by such eligible participant and received by the Company
together with a remittance in favour of the Company of
HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof within
twenty-one (21) days from the offer date.

Exercise price

The exercise price shall be determined at the discretion
of the Board at its absolute discretion, provided that it
shall be not less than the highest of: (a) the closing price
of the Shares on the Stock Exchange as shown in the daily
quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the offer date,
which must be a Business Day; (b) the average of the
closing prices of the Shares as shown in the daily quotations
sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five (5) Business Days
immediately preceding the offer date; (c) the nominal value
of the Share on the offer date.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)

Remaining life of the Scheme
The Directors shall be entitled at any time within 10 years
commencing on 29 March 2016 to offer the grant of an

option to any eligible participant. The Scheme will expire
on 28 March 2026.

As at the date of this report and since the adoption of
the Scheme, no share option has been granted by the
Company.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2016, to the best of the Directors’
knowledge, the interests and short positions of the person
(other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company)
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as
recorded in the register of substantial shareholders required
to be kept under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long positions in the issued shares/underlying shares
of the Company
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Approximate

Number of percentage
ordinary shares/ of issued
underlying share capital
Name of shareholders Notes Nature of interest shares held of the Company
EARF
FsagER,/ ERTRE
RREEEH B &E BamME HEROBE BREDL
Mr. Jiang Jianhui ("Mr. Jiang") (a) Interest in a controlled corporation 150,000,000 75.0%
FEELE (%% REEEER
Youth Force (a) Beneficial owner 150,000,000 75.0%
ESHAA
Ms. Weng Guangmin (“Ms. Weng") (b) Interest in a controlled corporation 195,000,000 97.5%
srgat ((§rL)l) REEEES
Power Expert (b) Beneficial owner 195,000,000 97.5%
TG 8EIB Bk EREAA
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (Cont'd)

Long positions in the issued shares/underlying shares
of the Company (Cont’d)

Notes:

(a) Youth Force is wholly-owned by Mr. Jiang. As such,
Mr. Jiang is deemed to be interested in the 150,000,000
Shares owned by Youth Force by virtue of the SFO.

(b) Power Expert is wholly-owned by Ms. Weng. As such,

Ms. Weng is deemed to be interested in the 195,000,000
underlying Shares through its interests in the convertible
bonds, in the principal amount of HK$390,000,000 issued
by the Company, owned by Power Expert by virtue of
the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2016, no person,
other than the Directors and chief executive of the Company
whose interests are set out in the section headed “Directors’
and Chief Executive's Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” above, had
notified the Company of an interest or short position in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company that was
required to be recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Directors’
and Chief Executive'’s Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” above, at no
time during the year ended 31 March 2016 were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any Director or his/
her spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were any
such rights exercised by them; or was the Company, or any
of its subsidiaries, holding companies or fellow subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the directors to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions
undertaken in the usual course of business are set out in
note 37 to the financial statements.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group had the
following continuing connected transactions. Details are as
follows:

Duration of agreement
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Nature of transaction

RXEMHE

Able Contractors (note a)
21 November 2013
B=F—

RZIRIEEE (Mita)

Frason Holdings Limited
(note b)
BEERBRAR (A4:b) B=

1 June 2013

Three years commencing from

=Ft+—AZ+—BEF=F DB BUNREZENBTRE

Three years commencing from

—=FRNA-HEF=F

Sub-contract of carcass works for
a building construction project in
Tsuen Wan
HAH
FREETE

Lease of office premises and car
parking spaces

ME W R MoREAL
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Cont'd)

note a:

Able Contractors, is a connected person of the Company by virtue
of it being a wholly owned subsidiary of Vantage, one of our
previous controlling shareholders during the period from 1 April
2015 to 5 June 2015.

In the ordinary and usual course of business, Excel Engineering
Company Limited (“Excel”), the wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into transaction with Able Contractors on normal
commercial terms. Pursuant to the sub-contracting agreement,
Able Contractors shall provide sub-contracting works for the
building construction project in Tsuen Wan. Excel may (but is not
obliged to) provide certain staff as it may consider appropriate to
assist or supervise Able Contractors under the relevant project and
in return, Able Contractors would reimburse the Group based on
the cost of the relevant staff and the hours spent in accordance
with the sub-contracting agreement.

During the period from 1 April 2015 to 5 June 2015, the sub-
contracting fee to Able Contractors amounted to approximately
HK$8.0 million which did not exceed the related annual cap while
there was no reimbursement of staff cost from Able Contractors
during the period.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
continuing connected transactions and have confirmed that the
continuing connected transactions have been entered into (i) in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (ii) either on
normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable than those
available to/from independent third parties; and (iii) in accordance
with the relevant agreement governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and are in the interests of the Shareholders as a
whole.

Ernst & Young, the Company's auditor, was engaged to report on
the Group's continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information and with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor's
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Ernst & Young have issued their unqualified
letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed above by the Group
in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the
auditor's letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.
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Report of the Directors
ESERE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Cont'd)

note b:

Frason Holdings Limited (“Frason”), is a connected person of
the Company by virtue of it being a wholly owned subsidiary of
Vantage, one of our previous controlling shareholders during the
period from 1 April 2015 to 5 June 2015.

Frason and Excel entered into a tenancy agreement pursuant
to which Frason as Landlord agreed to lease to Excel the office
premises at No. 155 Waterloo Road, Kowloon Tong, Kowloon,
Hong Kong and car parking spaces at a monthly rent of HK$51,700
(exclusive of utility and other property related miscellaneous

expenses).

As the highest relevant percentage ratio in respect of this
continuing connected transaction, on an annual basis, is less
than 5% and the annual consideration is less than HK$3,000,000,
this transaction was pursuant to Rule 14A.33 of the Listing Rules
constituted de minimis continuing connected transactions exempt
from the reporting, announcement, annual review and independent
shareholders' approval requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY
VANTAGE

Vantage, the previous controlling shareholder of the
Company during the year, entered into a deed of
non-competition (the “Deed”) with the Company on
21 November 2013. Pursuant to the Deed, Vantage
undertakes that the retained Vantage group will not, inter
alia, engage in civil engineering construction business and
any business that is or is likely to be in competition with
that of the Group. For details about the above-mentioned
Deed, please refer to section headed "Relationship
with Controlling Shareholders” in our prospectus dated
28 November 2013 for details.

Vantage has confirmed to the Company of its compliance
with the Deed. The independent non-executive Directors
have reviewed the status of compliance and confirmed that
Vantage has not been in breach of the non-competition
undertaking during the period from 1 April 2015 to 5 June
2016.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has applied the principles and Code
Provisions as set out in the CG Code contained in Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules. During the year ended 31 March
2016, save as disclosed in the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report”, the Company has complied with the
Code Provisions in the CG Code.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Major Transaction in Relation to Acquisition of the
Entire Equity Interest in the Target Company

On 24 May 2016, the Purchaser 2 as purchaser entered
into the Wheels SPA with Mr. Zhang as vendor. Pursuant
to which, the Purchaser 2 has conditionally agreed to
acquire and Mr. Zhang has conditionally agreed to sell
the entire issued share capital of Keenmount and all the
liabilities, loans and obligations owing by Keenmount and
its subsidiaries at completion in an aggregate consideration
of HK$390.0 million, which shall be satisfied to Mr. Zhang
by issue of convertible bonds in the principle amount
of HK$390.0 million at completion. Keenmount and its
subsidiaries intend to be principally engaged in the
assembly of automotive wheels and tyres and supply of
assembled wheels and tyres to automotive manufacturers.

Further details of the transaction are set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 24 May 2016 and 22 June
2016.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed together with the
management and external auditor the accounting principles
and policies adopted by the Group, discussed internal
controls and financial reporting matters and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2016.
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Report of the Directors
ESERE

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2016 have been audited by Ernst & Young.

Ernst & Young shall retire in the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of
Ernst & Young as auditors of the Company will be proposed
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Excel Development (Holdings) Limited

Wong Hin Shek
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 29 June 2016
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

A HERERRSE

ABOUT THIS REPORT

Excel Development (Holdings) Limited (“Excel

Development” or the “Group”), focuses on its business
in (i) civil engineering and construction business; and (ii)

automotive engines business.

Looking back into the current financial year, the Group was
devoted to the development of environmental protection,
community contribution as well as its employee and
stakeholder engagement.

This section is our first report outlining our commitments
and strategies to environmental protection, social
responsibility and governance. Our first report covers the
sustainability performance of the Group from 1 April 2015 to

31 March 2016. Our report serves two main purposes:

e  Ensuring that our environment, social and governance
performance is clearly and openly communicated with
our stakeholders; and

e Stimulating discussion with and soliciting input from
our stakeholders in the shaping of our business.

Relevant disclosures of this report are made in accordance
with the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide published by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, highlighting our performance in various aspects
of the guide in the current financial year. The scope of
reporting covers the Group's headquarters and its subsidiary
operating companies and contains only the most material
segment information of the Group. Considering that the
automotive engines business was newly acquired on 4
February 2016,
financial year. Thus, our first report only included the civil

its impact was immaterial in the current

engineering and construction business.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE  HeRERRS

COMMITMENT TO OUR PEOPLE

Our Workspace

“People are the most valuable assets of the Group at all
time and in every aspect.”

Aspiring to be the preferred employer in the industry, we
are devoted to shape a non-discriminating, diverse, fair
and harmonious workplace in which our people are highly
valued and respected. We deeply believe that recruiting
and retaining top talents are of paramount importance for
the sustainable development of the Group. In formulation
of our human resources strategies, we have allocated ample
resources in providing various trainings to our employees in
the hope of developing their full potentials both personally
and professionally in addition to attractive remuneration
packages and promising career paths. We grow hand-in-
hand for the benefits of individual employee and the long-
term growth of the Group as a united body. Our project
companies have developed company regulations outlining
the standards and guidelines of which our employees
are expected to follow. We strongly encourage open
communication within the organization for successful
execution of company polices and strategies.

Talent Acquisition and Retention

“As we treasure our people we also take good care of
them.”

The Group seeks and welcomes people with talent and
passion. Our team of about 400 employees is the important
asset of the Group and their unwavering dedication has
ensured the continued success of the Group. We strive
to establish a workforce of diversify and competency as it
is the key to our provision of a world-class service to our
customers. As an equal opportunity employer, the Group
is committed to employing a diverse workforce in terms of
age and academic qualifications to carry out the operations
of our business. We provide all employees with the
opportunities to reach their growth potential and contribute
to the well-being of the community. We see diversity
and inclusiveness as an essential and integral part of our
competitive advantage.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE dgRERHRSE

COMMITMENT TO OUR PEOPLE (Cont'd)

Talent Acquisition and Retention (Cont'd)

“As we treasure our people we also take good care of
them.” (Cont’d)

The Group's competitive remuneration and benefit package
demonstrates our commitment to rewarding employees for
their excellence in job performance, results and for their
professionalism. We strictly comply with the Employment
Ordinance for the protection of benefits of employees in
Hong Kong. Meanwhile, a comprehensive performance
review system was established so that our employees could
receive regular review and appraisal of performance and
development.

Equal Opportunities and Diversity

“We believe that by aligning talents with various
competencies and capabilities from different range of
backgrounds, the Group grows from strength to strength.”
We are committed to establishing an inclusive, diverse and
discrimination-free culture based on the values of fairness,
dignity and respect. We provide equal opportunities
and fair treatment for all job applicants and current
employees irrespective of age, gender, race, color, descent,
ethnic background, nationality, disability, veteran status,
citizenship, religion, sexual orientation and marital status as
we believed that varieties and differences are intrinsic to the
success and sustainable development of our business.

We adopt a zero tolerance approach to unethical labour
practices including child labour and forced labour. We
strive not only to comply stringently with the Employment
Ordinance in Hong Kong and other applicable legal
requirements but to exemplify best practice as a responsible
employer.

Reported
cases

R

(EES
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
9 W - A B R AR

COMMITMENT TO OUR PEOPLE (Cont’d) BHERMETHHEE (&)
Diversity of Our People BMMEIZ M
By Gender By Designation
® It FIE] 5 ’(Eip &7
14%

60%
= Male 5514 ® Executive Director $I1TE %
Female Zf Independent Non-executive Directors
BUFNTESR
Occupational Health and Safety BEEERZZ
“Our employees form the keystone of our success, and [E B 1E S #E B IR E A - HFRA
we recognise the importance of building a conducive and EBNA BT T IERES BIESIEREE
inclusive working environment that provides them with U BIER A BRI EZE - |

opportunities to reach their full potential.”

Health and safety are the most pressing concerns across EEKEZE2ABMEHBEEFEEXBINS
our business operations. As a responsible corporation, we H- - {FA—HABEENAF  BMEBUE
are committed to protecting the health and safety of our ZREMEEENHFNEITER @ MORERE
employees, customers, subcontractors and the public by B &BF 28BEERARALTHNRERERZZ -
conducting our business in a safe and socially responsible FEUBEmMBHNRZERZZRBRERE - &
manner so as to minimise the health and safety risks posed fIRBXREARZEERRZRGCEREFAH
to them. Our occupational health and safety management BIIZERER R —BHIOHSAS 18001 ©
system has been certified compliance with OHSAS 18001,

which is aligned with international standards of best

practice.
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RIE - HERERBRE
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COMMITMENT TO OUR PEOPLE (Cont'd)

Occupational Health and Safety (Cont’'d)

“Our employees form the keystone of our success, and
we recognise the importance of building a conducive and
inclusive working environment that provides them with
(Cont’d)

We aim to excel in occupational health and safety

opportunities to reach their full potential.”

performance and achieve an accident-free operation. We
offer an ideal workplace and comprehensive wellness
programs for our employees while maintaining regular and
open dialogues with them. “Safety first — prevention is
crucial” is the fundamental principle governing our safety
management policy. To accomplish this, we will comply
fully with all applicable laws and regulations and strive to
integrate health and safety considerations into all aspects
of our business activities. We also require our business

partners to meet the same health and safety standards.

With construction as one of our core business, it is vital for
our employees and subcontracted workers to be on the alert
for potential hazards, and follow strict safety protocol when
working onsite. We work closely with our subcontractors
to ensure that all subcontracted workers we engage are
given comprehensive safety training during different project
stages:
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE  HeRERRS

COMMITMENT TO OUR PEOPLE (Cont'd)

Occupational Health and Safety (Cont’'d)

“Our employees form the keystone of our success, and

we recognise the importance of building a conducive and

inclusive working environment that provides them with

opportunities to reach their full potential.” (Cont’d)

e Risk assessment is conducted on each project at the
outset to identify the risks associated to determine and
implement relevant precautionary measures

e Induction trainings are provided before commencement
of work

e Site-specific training is organised when technical and
complicated work procedures are to be executed

As well as attending to day-to-day health and safety
considerations, we must be prepared for the unexpected.
To augment the ability of emergency preparedness and
response of our employees, all of our operating companies
are required to carry out emergency drills and safety
exercises periodically according to applicable national laws
and regulations as well as emergency preparedness plans.

We also believe that regular education and training play a
vital role in raising and maintaining the occupational health
and safety awareness among our people at all times. We
covered topics such as safety use of equipment, prevention
and handling of accident, emergency management and
rescue, production safety and corresponding laws and
regulations, fire protection knowledge, etc.

In the event of any safety incident at work, our employees
have to report and investigate the incident in accordance
with the Group’s policy. All employees must report to their
supervisors in respect of any accident at work for immediate
implementation of appropriate protective measures.
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RE dgRERHRSE

COMMITMENT TO OUR PEOPLE (Cont'd)

Training and Continual Development

“Investing in our people is not only advantageous to the
personal and career development of our people but also to
the stainable and healthy growth of our business.”

Excel Development aspires to be an employer of choice.
We have policies and systems in place to attract talents and
through continuous training and development, nurture them
for a fulfilling career.

Investing in the future is essential to us and we develop
employees at every level of their career. We offer our
employees a variety of learning opportunities that will
enhance their management and technical skills on the basis
of their job capacity, personal capability and development
potential. Different learning experiences and dynamic
training programs are organised to enable our people to
achieve their highest potential. Training programs have
been organised both internally and externally to equip our
employees with new knowledge in the industry. To show
recognition and acknowledgement, relevant qualification
certificates are presented to employees upon completion of

certain courses.

Fatal
accident
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE  HeRERRS

COMMITMENT TO OUR ENVIRONMENT

Environmental Protection and Green Operation

We are committed to protecting the environment and
supporting sustainable development by conducting our
business in an environmentally responsible manner. We
believe that a successful environment management is
important for us to meet customers’ demand in environment
protection and to ensure healthy growth and sustainable
development of our business. At Excel Development, we
aim to ensure that all services are delivered with high
quality and are conducted in an environmentally responsible
manner in delivering construction works.

It is our policy to comply fully with applicable laws and
regulations and endeavor to integrate environmental
considerations into all aspects of our business operation.
We are seeing more stringent environmental laws
and regulations in different countries as well as rising
stakeholder expectations, which are crucial drivers for our
focus on environmental compliance.

In recent years, the Group has strengthened energy
management and emission control to mitigate greenhouse
effect. We believe that monitoring and tracking of our air
and greenhouse gas emissions are important metrics to
demonstrate our progress in emissions reduction.

Our approach

We have a variety of internal environmental standards
and guidelines to assist us in fulfilling our environmental
commitments. Our current internal environmental standards
take the view that,
Group, we should require our operations to perform beyond

as an environmentally responsible
compliance.

We believe that sustainability encompasses not merely our
environmental performance but also encapsulates the way
we manage our business practices. In addition to applicable
laws and regulations, the Group has established a series of
internal control mechanisms and management systems to
ensure the highest standard of business integrity across our
operating units.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

A HERERRSE

COMMITMENT TO OUR ENVIRONMENT
(Cont’d)

In-house Green Management

In addition to applicable laws and regulations, the Group is
committed to green our own operation through proactive
environment management and staff engagement. We have
set up an environmental management system to promote
environmental awareness and to prevent pollution of the

environment. Our environmental management system was
accredited ISO 14001 certification.

Management of Construction Waste

We are committed to preventing pollution and mitigating
potential environmental impacts arising from our projects
and operation. Throughout the current financial year, the
Group did not produce any hazardous waste. In managing
construction waste, our objective is to promote the 3R
policy, i.e. reduce, reuse and recycle, and devote to prevent
construction waste from being disposed of in landfills.
Specific measures include:

e Avoiding and minimizing construction waste generation
at sources through better planning, designing and
construction management

* Reuse/recycle construction waste whenever possible

e All construction wastes that could not be reuse/
recycle are minimised, transported and disposed of in
environmental friendly manners and in full compliance
with statutory requirements

e Monitoring the performance of our subcontractors
to ensure their compliance with our environmental
requirements

hazardous
waste

BEER
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE  HeRERRS

COMMITMENT TO OUR ENVIRONMENT
(Cont’d)

Green Office

At our group we are committed to the responsible use
of resources, which entails using resources that have less
potential environmental impacts where commercially
possible, but more importantly, using less resources. As
part of our environmental policy, we enact 3R practices -
Reduce, Reuse and Recycle — to minimise the consumption
of valuable resources and tackle waste.

To enhance our employees’ awareness of reducing energy,
we implement in the current financial year an office policy at
our Head Office, under which:

e Electric appliances are required to turn-off when
unattended to reduce unnecessary energy wastage
e Air-conditioner are tuned to optimise room temperature

By implementing the energy saving policy, electricity
generated from our Head Office decreased by 30%, from
12,576 kg CO2/kWh in the first half of financial year to 8,783
kg CO2/kWh in the second half of financial year. We are
glad to see this is working and will extend the initiative to
the future.

N\ 7

HRMARENEE (&)

BRIPLE

EXREE - RABNEBEEHERER - BR
ERMEBZLATHBATERAEERR
TERINER HREEENRERIERE
R ERIRBBRA — & - HAFIHIEIRT
Q- ER - MEERLRBERER - A&
ERVERLEERLBRRE o

RIESEERVEMAERNER - HANAY
BFEEHEAMER—BERAZTHE - B

. BARRBARRTES
RRE

. BEEBHEREENRE

LA R B

BREMRERENBER - RBPEENTS HHY
BEE FEENFTRE12,576 R T =8/t
WA30%EFHFE T HEFHETTERS 7832
Tt - RMERSEEIBERER - L
REZEXEREE -

12,576 kg CO, / kWh

BFER12,576 AT —& bz

\7

p—
-

/7 N\

A 4

8,783 kg CO, / kWh
BT RS, 783 T =& 1thx

Annual Report 2015/16 —Z—F /— /N &4 69



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE dgRERHRSE

COMMITMENT TO OUR SUPPLY CHAIN
Guiding Supplier Behavior

“We recognise the positive impact we can have on our
subcontractors by clearly communicating our expectations
on sustainability issues.”

We will consider a set of strict criteria for the selection of
subcontractors based on their previous job experience,
skills for specialised job, resource capabilities, reputation,
present workload and their price quotations. During the
course of a project, we will implement regular assessment

of our subcontractors to ensure quality of their works.

Also, we regularly evaluate our subcontractors’ performance
in order to maintain a list of authorised subcontractors
which is reviewed and updated on an ongoing basis. We

have adopted guidelines to maintain objectiveness of all
evaluation reports. Past
performance is logged in our N
management system, and & REDUCE
- - REUSE
is taken into account when

. RECYCLE

Y]

selecting subcontractors for
new projects. Serious cases of
misconduct or lack of improvement in performance can lead
to exclusion from our subcontractors list.

Encouraging Good Labour Practice

Not only are we committed to treating our own people
fairly and with respect, we also require our construction
subcontractors to follow sound labour practices. At a
minimum, we expect our subcontractors to operate with
integrity, treat their people fairly and ensure compliance
with all applicable laws and regulations. We will hold regular
meetings with subcontractors to ensure they and their

workers align with our environmental protection policy.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE  HeRERRS

COMMITMENT TO OUR SUPPLY CHAIN
(Cont'd)

Supporting Local Subcontractors

We choose to work with subcontractors in Hong
Kong whenever possible. Throughout 2015, all of our
subcontractors are located in Hong Kong. We believe that
in doing so, we contribute to the local economy. We will
also assess the viability of incorporating more medium or
even social enterprises in our supply chain to promote local
entrepreneurship.

Construction Worker Safety

We have a stringent occupational health and safety
management system that meets the OHSAS 18001 standard.
We will conduct safety assessment on our subcontractors
to ensure all constructions are undertaken in a safe manner.
Regular meetings are held between our project manager
and subcontractors to discuss a variety of matters including
the health and safety aspects of the project.

e  Prior to construction project commencement:
e Conduct safety assessment on subcontractor and
the project
e Site safety induction training specific to the
conditions of individual sites

e During the project:
e Communications are frequently held to enhance
alertness of workers
*  Meetings with subcontractors and perform site visit
to keep track on progress and quality of work

BERMAKERENEE (F)

XEFEARM SR
BRMEARERETEDERAE - R2F—
hEE2F  RMANMEDEBRABLREE - R
PIA1E - ERIRAHMZEELER - RO
AEE SRR ER TS ERARMIHERE
FEIAITIE - IAMRE AR (DA R

BEITANZE

B EREOBXERERLEBTERS &
S OHSAS 180011F 4 « HIBH D B REEITL
BTG  BRITALRANUNZ 2 FEE - &
MMEELESESYPEET TSR - U
WEEEENBREALETEEEER -

fEFTi2EA A
o HOBENABRETLREME

o BERNTHMRFRHFET LR
AR

o JEREHIMAE :

RIFEEBBMERIA

/33
aE

1%

it

e HOBMBITEE LETIHE
BURBTIREEREE

Annual Report 2015/16 —Z—F /— /N &4 71



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE dgRERHRSE

COMMITMENT TO OUR SUPPLY CHAIN
(Cont'd)

Quality Management

We believe that our commitment to enhancing the quality
of our management and construction works is instrumental
in maintaining our overall reputation. In pursuit of quality,
we implement and operate a quality management system in
accordance with the requirements of ISO 9001.

To ensure delivery of quality work to our customers, our
project team members are well trained in implementing
our quality control measures which comprise monitoring,
verifying and validating the construction, installation works
and materials before delivery of completed project works to
our customers. Regular inspection will be conducted by our
project team members to ensure that the work completed
conforms to the specifications and requirements set out in
the relevant contract.

Anti-corruption

We are committed to providing quality service to customers
and all employees must perform duties at the highest
level of integrity, commitment and professionalism. We
have comprehensive mechanisms to ensure that ethical
business practices are adopted when our employees deal
with suppliers and subcontractors. A Code of Conduct
has been established for all employees, which are made
for the purpose of setting out the standard of behavior
expected for our employees, such as acceptance of gifts or
entertainment, conflict of interest and outside employment.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE  HeRERRS

COMMITMENT TO OUR COMMUNITY

Community Involvement

“A helping hand can change the world”

As a responsible enterprise, we believe in the importance
of giving back to society while operating our business.
Driven by our core value of “Caring”, we engage
different community groups to support and add value
to communities, and build social capital through various
programs. We hope to build mutual trust and support in
creating a harmonious and sustainable society.

Community Contribution

We invest both money and time into our communities. Our
community investment strategy is to monitor social issues
and concerns and address them as needed. For this reason,
we have chosen charitable organization with mission of
building a caring society to donate our community service.

OUTLOOK

We would like to take this opportunity to extend our sincere
gratitude to our employees, suppliers, shareholders and
other stakeholders for their long-term support and trust to
the Group. The feedbacks from these parties are of great
value to us in forming our business strategy to focus on
their needs. We will continue to strive to implement the
best practices in corporate social responsibility to advance
the global sustainability agenda at large.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
N % BE R S

e
EY:

To the shareholders of Excel Development (Holdings) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Excel Development (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries set out on pages 76 to 179, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2016, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

B ZBET RS

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Company and its subsidiaries as at 31 March 2016, and of
their financial performance and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

29 June 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
GEREREMZERAER

Year ended 31 March 2016
BHEZZT—R"F=-A=+—HLFE

2016 2015
—EB-RF —E-hF
Notes HK$'000 HK$’000
P aE THET FETT
REVENUE KA 5 609,335 702,856
Cost of sales B HRA (603,483) (662,053)
Gross profit EF 5,852 40,803
Other income and gains HAB WA R s 5 10,756 3,163
Administrative expenses TR (38,171) (24,875)
Finance costs B8 6 (10,370) (39)
Change in fair value of a financial asset AT EFEBEZYIERZ
at fair value through profit or loss TREEATEZE 18 (416) -
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX MBLATER (B5E) 7 (32,349) 19,052
Income tax expense PTG 2 10 (774) (3,178)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FEA(BE) (33,123) 15,874
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS Hib2HEE
Other comprehensive loss to be & B HAR
reclassified to profit or loss in BNOBREERSR
subsequent periods: HEMEEEE :
Exchange differences on translation of & /FINETEHY
foreign operations E =R (769) -
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR & RHME2EEE
THE YEAR (769) -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ & A R#EA AW
(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS ZEBA(BE)
OF THE PARENT s (33,892) 15,874
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE SN
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF BE AL
THE PARENT BREF (ER) 12
Basic and diluted (HK cents) HARR#E BL) (16.6) 7.9
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
mEMEMIR &R

31 March 2016
R=ZZE—"E=A=+—H

2016 2015
—E—-RE —E—hF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FAT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment MIEE WM ERE 13 48,327 2,194
Investment properties KEME 14 - 800
Goodwill RS 15 490,948 =
Intangible assets mIEE 16 687,523 =
Investment in a joint venture R—HEEEENEE 17 - -
Total non-current assets MBI EERE 1,226,798 2,994
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Financial asset at fair value through BEATEERERSKRZ
profit or loss SREE 18 9,636 =
Inventories TE 19 1,622 =
Gross amount due from customers for JEWEFH
contract works BN TIERBEEE 20 30,150 31,028
Accounts receivable FEULBR FX 21 396,360 177,789
Tax recoverable B eIk 3,177 4,494
Prepayments, deposits and other BNZE 2k
receivables H i pEl k 22 18,308 16,042
Cash and cash equivalents BE RIREEEY 23 16,885 143,693
Total current assets MBEERE 476,138 373,046
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAE
Accounts payable FERTBR R 24 225,796 101,464
Accruals of costs for contract works TBIRA X TR 38,688 45,237
Tax payable JE & 1E 2,926 -
Other payables and accruals Hin e R ERE A 25 19,531 3,204
Interest-bearing other borrowings TR EAMEK 26 13,013 -
Total current liabilities mENRERE 299,954 149,905
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 176,184 223,141
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EERERRBDAS
LIABILITIES 1,402,982 226,135
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mEMBRRE

31 March 2016
RZE—AR"F=A=+—H

2016 2015
—E—XF —E—hHF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FAETT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Convertible bonds Al (E S 27 340,316 -
Promissory notes EHEE 28 426,576 =
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFRIBEE 29 103,139 8
Total non-current liabilities R B EERE 870,031 8
Net assets BEFE 532,951 226,127
EQUITY Ex
Equity attributable to owners of BATRHEEA
the parent P&k
Share capital A& K 30 2,000 2,000
Equity component of convertible bonds AJ# &5 2 #Ez 285 27 390,716 —
Reserves i 32 140,235 224,127
Total equity B 532,951 226,127

Wong Hin Shek
Director
TEE
EFE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GERESER

Year ended 31 March 2016
HEZZ—"EF=A=+—RHLFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BAARE AEL
Equity
component
Exchange of
Share Share  fluctuation convertible  Retained Total
capital  premium reserve bonds profits equity
PERS TRRES
k& RGEE fiF Z2REH? REE7H agn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET THET THET THET
At 1 April 2014 RZE-MEMNA-A 2,000 95,486 - - 112,767 210,253
Profit and total comprehensive FRENRZERALE
income for the year = = = = 15,874 15,874
At 31 March 2015 and RZZ-h¥=A=1—-H
1 April 2015 R=E-1FNA—H 2,000 95,486* —* - 128,641* 226,127
Loss for the year ENER = = = = (33,123) (33,123)
Other comprehensive loss for the year: FREMEEFIE :
Exchange differences on translation BN EH#H)
of foreign operations EHEH = = (769) = = (769)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FR2EEELHE - - (769) - (33,123) (33,892)
Special dividend paid (note 11) ERRRIRS (H&E11) = (50,000) = = = (50,000)
Issue of convertible bonds for a BITMRRESIUE
business combination (note 27) ERAH (WE27) = = = 390,716 = 390,716
At 31 March 2016 RZE-F=A=+-H 2,000 45,486* (769)* 390,716 95,518* 532,951

*

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves
of HK$140,235,000 (2015: HK$224,127,000) in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

* N EREREEEERAKAUBRRERPHN
42 & FE 140,235,000 T (= & — F £ ¢
224,127,000/ 7T) °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
n _\éiﬁa ﬁiﬁ:i%

Year ended 31 March 2016
BHEZZT—R"F=-A=+—HLFE

2016 2015
—B—ARE —E—hF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
PaE THET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REXRBEEN
ACTIVITIES RERE
Profit/(loss) before tax BREATEF(EE) (32,349) 19,052
Adjustments for: T BB ELRE
Finance costs B8 H 6 10,370 39
Interest income FEHA 5 (28) (85)
Depreciation e 7 1,381 204
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMME AR 8 HE 5 (85) -
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEWE - #ER
plant and equipment RAETE B Bz 5 (44) (72)
Gain on disposal of HERE YOS
investment properties 5 (300) -
Gain on changes in fair value of KREMERATE
investment properties sEy i es 5 - (200)
Amortisation of intangible assets ER A N 7 8,389 -
Change in fair value of a financial BRAHESBEZYIR
asset at fair value through ZEMEERNTE
profit or loss BE) 18 416 =
(12,250) 18,938
Decrease in inventories FERD 39,353 =
Decrease in gross amount due from EREFEHNEHTIE
customers for contract works R 878 48,950
Decrease/(increase) in accounts FEUBR ZOR A (18 hn)
receivable (171,445) 3,958
Decrease in prepayments, deposits FENRIE - B2k
and other receivables HAth & WO 4,036 14,195
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable FEfTBRFIZ AN, (F4) 43,671 (134,068)
Increase/(decrease) in accruals of costs FEIRA #) T2
for contract works #gm, CR) (6,549) 33,447
Increase in other payables and accruals Hfh sk & TR & F1E hn 13,377 58
Cash used in operations KEFRNIE S (88,929) (14,522)
Interest received B FE 28 85
Interest paid ERALE (340) (39)
Hong Kong profits tax refunded/(paid) iRE (Bft) FEFIERH 1,317 (7,359)
Net cash flows used in operating CEEEFRR
activities RemEFHE (87,924) (21,835)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERERER

Year ended 31 March 2016
HEZZ—"EF=A=+—RHLFE

2016 2015
—E-REF —ZT—hfF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
PiaE THET FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REXRBELEN
ACTIVITIES RERE
Additions of items of property, plant  AEWE - #E2 K
and equipment ®EIEHE 13 (1,953) (2,294)
Acquisition of subsidiaries W5 B B/ % 33 (501) -
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHE QA 34 97 -
Proceeds from disposal of investment HEREYE
properties P15 5008 1,100 -
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEWE - SRR EE
property, plant and equipment B PS8 44 72
Increase in an amount due from the FEUN 2 (= 2 B IR L A0
Vantage Group = 1,196
Net cash flows used in investing KEEBFERN
activities REmEFHE (1,213) (1,026)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING RMEEKEEN
ACTIVITIES RERE
New interest-bearing bank loans PE BRITE S _ 8,606
New interest-bearing other loans MEst B EMER 7,000 -
Repayment of interest-bearing BEFTERITER
bank loans = (8,606)
Special dividend paid BRI S (50,000) -
Advance from a shareholder KB —BREAER 6,000 -
Net cash flows used in financing RO E FEIFE A
activities REREFHE (37,000) —
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH B&RESZEY
EQUIVALENTS WD R (126,137) (22,861)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning F#IMIR & NI EED
of year 143,693 166,554
Effect of foreign exchange rate HNFERE R B B R  BHER
changes, net (671) =
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT HXHRER
END OF YEAR REEEYD 16,885 143,693
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH B4 RESZEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EERD AT
Cash and bank balances INE MIBTTES 23 16,885 133,546
Non-pledged time deposits with BERRAZIEA
original maturity of less than DR =18 A &
three months when acquired M FE B TE R 23 - 10,147
16,885 143,693
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Corporate and Group information

Excel Development (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”)
is an exempted company with limited liability
incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The registered
office address of the Company is located at Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The principal place of
business of the Company is located at 21st Floor, 1
Duddell Street, Central, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the "Group”) were principally
engaged in the following principal activities:

e Civil engineering works and building construction
and maintenance works (the "Civil Engineering and
Construction Business”)

e Development, production and sale of automotive
engines (the "Automotive Engines Business”, and
newly acquired during the year — note 33)

On 5 June 2015, the then intermediate holding
company, Vantage International (Holdings) Limited
("Vantage”), disposed of its entire equity interest in
the Company to Youth Force Asia Ltd. (“Youth Force”),
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
("BVI"). Youth Force has become the holding company
and the ultimate holding company of the Company
since then.

Vantage and its subsidiaries are hereafter collectively
referred to as the "Vantage Group”.

Excel Development (Holdings) Limited 18z #2 % A PR A &
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Corporate and Group information (Continued) 1.

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are
as follows:

31 March 2016
—T—R"E=A=+—H
AAREEER ()
ERNREARIZER
RAalz EEWBRRFBLT

Place of Nominal value
incorporation/ of issued Percentage of
registration and  ordinary share equity attributable Principal
Company name business capital to the Company activities
HMRY S BERR EBRTEER RRATF ML
AL RS RAEWEE BEBIL FEXH
Direct Indirect
BHE B
Excel Engineering Hong Kong HK$ - 100 Civil engineering
Company Limited &% 23,288,000 works and
("Excel Engineering”) 23,288,000 7T building
BamTEARAA construction and

(MezTi2l)

Excel Construction Hong Kong HK$1
Development Limited &% 1787
("Excel Construction”)

Chongging Bisu Yunbo People's Republic RMB
Motor Technology of China (“PRC") 60,000,000
Limited? (“Bisu Yunbo"”) R #E AR ILFEH AREE

BRI REEE SRR (THhED) 60,000,0007T

BRAR* ([LLEREF])

* Registered as limited liability company under PRC law

# The English name of this company represents the best
effort made by management of the Company to directly
translate its Chinese name as no official English name
has been registered.

maintenance
works
TARIRREE KR
BFEER
REEB

- 100 Leasing of
equipment for
construction
works

HETIZRME

= 100 Development,
production
and sale of
automotive
engines
- EER
SHE T B

* REPBEEEEMABRAR
AR EEMEREXARE B ARZ

RXEWITBHARAEEEERALNE
ERETXAEEE -
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Corporate and Group information (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial

in the opinion of the directors,

portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details
of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the

directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Details of the subsidiaries acquired and disposed of
during the year are summarised in notes 33 and 34 to
the financial statements, respectively.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the "HKICPA"), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for investment properties and a
financial asset at fair value through profit or loss which
have been measured at fair value.

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$") and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand (“HK$'000”) except when otherwise
indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the year ended 31 March 2016. A subsidiary is
an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give
the Group the current ability to direct the relevant

activities of the investee).

Excel Development (Holdings) Limited 18z #2 % A PR A &
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2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicated that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

31 March 2016
—E—RF=ZA=+—H

2.1 fRREE (&)
REEE (#)
EARAERAMEEE L NRIRE ST K
ZENFORIELEN  EFEEEEHE
BHHERETNENR  AEEEEEM
BHEASEENBER 84 -

(a) HEERETHEMEIAEFAEENAR
2k

(o) EMERLHFELNEN : &

(0 AEBEHRREREERRE -

Y /8 2~ A e B FS R SR A B AN R R — B
SRR MERREHRER - MEQF
MEABASERGEF# 2 B HELR
B YTHESRCEEERVWERILZAAR
ik o

Bam Rt ERANSAKE D D EE
RAKE G RBES ARIFERER - B
FEU RS MFEREEERBSEE - AT
EREARARcEEREE  #m - K
A RAXEAREERE QBRI ZHEZ
BenInEa ke B2 BURHE -
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Annual Report 2015/16 —F—F /— /N EF4E 4 85



Notes to Financial Statements

B RS AR YRR

31 March 2016
—T—X"F=A=1+—H

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group's share of components previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit
or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and

86

disclosures

The Group has adopted the following revised standards
for the first time for the current year’s financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

The nature and the impact of each amendment is
described below:

(@) Amendments to HKAS 19 apply to contributions
from employees or third parties to defined benefit
plans. The amendments simplify the accounting
for contributions that are independent of the
number of years of employee service, for example,
employee contributions that are calculated
according to a fixed percentage of salary. If the
amount of the contributions is independent of the
number of years of service, an entity is permitted
to recognise such contributions as a reduction
of service cost in the period in which the related
service is rendered. The amendments have had no
impact on the Group as the Group does not have
defined benefit plans.
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2.2 Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (Continued)

(b) The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012
Cycle issued in January 2014 sets out amendments
to a number of HKFRSs. Details of the amendments
that are effective for the current year are as follows:

e HKFRS 8 Operating Segments: Clarifies
that an entity must disclose the judgements
made by management in applying the
aggregation criteria in HKFRS 8, including a
brief description of operating segments that
have been aggregated and the economic
characteristics used to assess whether the
segments are similar. The amendments also
clarify that a reconciliation of segment assets
to total assets is only required to be disclosed
if the reconciliation is reported to the chief
operating decision maker. The amendments
have had no impact on the Group.

e HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment
and HKAS 38 Intangible Assets: Clarifies the
treatment of the gross carrying amount and
accumulated depreciation or amortisation
of revalued items of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets. The
amendments have had no impact on the
Group as the Group does not apply the
revaluation model for the measurement of
these assets.

e HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures: Clarifies
that a management entity (i.e., an entity
that provides key management personnel
services) is a related party subject to related
party disclosure requirements. In addition,
an entity that uses a management entity is
required to disclose the expenses incurred for
management services. The amendment has
had no impact on the Group as the Group
does not receive any management services
from other entities.

31 March 2016
—ZT—X"E=A=+—H
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2.2 Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (Continued)

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013
Cycle issued in January 2014 sets out amendments

88

(c)

to a number of HKFRSs. Details of the amendments

that are effective for the current year are as follows:

HKFRS 3 Business Combinations: Clarifies that
joint arrangements but not joint ventures are
outside the scope of HKFRS 3 and the scope
exception applies only to the accounting
in the financial statements of the joint
arrangement itself. The amendment is applied
prospectively. The amendment has had no
impact on the Group as the Company is not a
joint arrangement and the Group did not form
any joint arrangement during the year.

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement: Clarifies
that the portfolio exception in HKFRS 13 can
be applied not only to financial assets and
financial liabilities, but also to other contracts
within the scope of HKFRS 9 or HKAS 39
as applicable. The amendment is applied
prospectively from the beginning of the
annual period in which HKFRS 13 was initially
applied. The amendment has had no impact
on the Group as the Group does not apply the
portfolio exception in HKFRS 13.
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2.2 Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (Continued)

(c) (Continued)

In addition,

HKAS 40 Investment Property: Clarifies that
HKFRS 3, instead of the description of ancillary
services in HKAS 40 which differentiates
between investment property and owner-
occupied property, is used to determine if
the transaction is a purchase of an asset or
a business combination. The amendment
is applied prospectively for acquisitions of
investment properties. The amendment has
had no impact on the Group as there was no
acquisition of investment properties during the
year and so this amendment is not applicable.

the Company has adopted the

amendments to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”) relating to the disclosure

of financial information with reference to the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) during the
current financial year. The main impact to the financial

statements is on the presentation and disclosure of

certain information in the financial statements.

31 March 2016
—ZT—X"E=A=+—H

22 ST HERNEBRIEE (F)
(0 (&)
o FBEHGHERFIEREYE

BRAEREEMBREERE

SMUNEERFRBEEEXE
BEG MIEERABREYER
BRAMEMARD N E B SR %E
AIFAOR M R ERRF St REE
E o ZEFTRREARBERE
W o MR FE YL BB
REME - AZIERTLTER -

BB 5T 3 AN & B 3 | AT
gﬁo

SN ARG BEE - AARESRAES
BMAERSGHBERAREZESEMAL (TE
mRA) PREAREER LN (F622F)
TR B ERIE R ZIEE] - M BMER

FEFEERYBRRAETERZER
T EE o

Annual Report 2015/16 —F—F /— /N EF4E 4 89



Notes to Financial Statements

B RS AR YRR

31 March 2016
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2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet

effective, in these financial statements.

HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

(2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 11

HKFRS 14
HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 27
(2011)

Annual Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle

Financial Instruments?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception'

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations'

Requlatory Deferral Accounts*

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Leases®

Disclosure Initiative'

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation'

Agriculture: Bearer Plants'

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements'

Amendments to a number of
HKFRSs!
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2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2016

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019

& Effective for an entity that first adopts HKFRSs for its
annual financial statements beginning on or after 1
January 2016 and therefore is not applicable to the
Group

No mandatory effective date is determined but available

for early adoption

Further information about those HKFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is as follows:

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final
version of HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases of the
financial instruments project to replace HKAS 39 and all
previous versions of HKFRS 9. The standard introduces
new requirements for classification and measurement,
impairment and hedge accounting. The Group expects
to adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 April 2018. The Group is
currently assessing the impact of the standard.

The amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011)
address an inconsistency between the requirements
in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with
the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture. The amendments
require a full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale
or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For
a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction
is recognised in the investor's profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investor's interest in that
associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be
applied prospectively.
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2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong

92

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

The amendments to HKFRS 11 require that an acquirer
of an interest in a joint operation in which the activity
of the joint operation constitutes a business must apply
the relevant principles for business combinations in
HKFRS 3. The amendments also clarify that a previously
held interest in a joint operation is not remeasured
on the acquisition of an additional interest in the
same joint operation while joint control is retained. In
addition, a scope exclusion has been added to HKFRS
11 to specify that the amendments do not apply when
the parties sharing joint control, including the reporting
entity, are under common control of the same ultimate
controlling party. The amendments apply to both the
acquisition of the initial interest in a joint operation
and the acquisition of any additional interests in
the same joint operation. The amendments are not
expected to have any impact on the financial position
or performance of the Group upon adoption on 1 April
2016.

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account
for revenue arising from contracts with customers.
Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which an entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
goods or services to a customer. The principles in
HKFRS 15 provide a more structured approach for
measuring and recognising revenue. The standard
also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements, including disaggregation
of total revenue, information about performance
obligations, changes in contract asset and liability
account balances between periods and key judgements
and estimates. The standard will supersede all current
revenue recognition requirements under HKFRSs. In
September 2015, the HKICPA issued an amendment
to HKFRS 15 regarding a one-year deferral of the
mandatory effective date of HKFRS 15 to 1 January
2018. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 15 on 1 April
2018 and is currently assessing the impact of HKFRS 15
upon adoption.
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2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

HKFRS 16 sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases.
The standard introduces a single lessee accounting
model and requires a lessee to recognise assets and
liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12
months, unless the underlying asset is of low value.
A lessee is required to recognise a right-of-use asset
representing its right to use the underlying leased
asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to
make lease payments. HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17.
Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as
operating leases or finance leases, and to account for
those two types of leases differently. The Group is yet
to assess the full impact of the standard on its financial
position and results of operations. The standard is
mandatorily effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2019.

Amendments to HKAS 1 include narrow-focus
improvements in respect of the presentation and
disclosure in financial statements. The amendments
clarify:

(i) the materiality requirements in HKAS 1;

(i) that specific line items in profit or loss and
the statement of financial position may be
disaggregated;

(iii) that entities have flexibility as to the order in which
they present the notes to financial statements; and

(iv) that the share of other comprehensive income of
associates and joint ventures accounted for using
the equity method must be presented in aggregate
as a single line item, and classified between
those items that will or will not be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss.
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2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong
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Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

Furthermore, the amendments clarify the requirements
that apply when additional subtotals are presented in
the statement of financial position and profit or loss.
The Group expects to adopt the amendments from
1 April 2016. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 clarify the
principle in HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 that revenue reflects
a pattern of economic benefits that are generated
from operating business (of which the asset is part)
rather than the economic benefits that are consumed
through the use of the asset. As a result, a revenue-
based method cannot be used to depreciate property,
plant and equipment and may only be used in very
limited circumstances to amortise intangible assets.
The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The
amendments are not expected to have any impact on
the financial position or performance of the Group
upon adoption on 1 April 2016 as the Group has not
used a revenue-based method for the calculation of
depreciation of its non-current assets.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

Investment in a joint venture

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of
an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of
the parties sharing control.

The Group's investment in a joint venture is stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group's share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of a joint venture is
included in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income. In addition,
when there has been a change recognised directly in
the equity of the joint venture, the Group recognises
its share of any changes, when applicable, in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised
gains and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its joint venture are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s investment in a joint venture,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
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(Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of
liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability is measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and
any fair value of the Group's previously held equity
interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair
value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its
annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) and
part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the
goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and
the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

31 March 2016
—E—RF=ZA=+—H

24 TESTHELE (&)

EBREOHREE (B)
BEVIZIRKATE - EEAE - #R
RIFEBRERN SR RAEBIARER
R RETT R R A FE 2 MBHAE
BT R Al BB B E FEMAEAERED
BBy o fH A B R E IR B 2 AER ATk
BEEFENQTE FAEZREEMR
IR IR SR FE R A5 BR B U8 Wk -

N ERIK ﬁﬁhﬁﬁﬂgﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁ
BAHE HEBESFANBEHHERE
@%%%ﬁﬁTuﬂ@%Eﬁ%ﬂLﬁﬂ
BAR - AEBESFR=ZA=1+—H#T
BERENR MREAATNE - REB
EHBRENAEERBAESDKEEY
%%éﬁ%ﬁ@%§§2$%ﬁ%ﬁ$§

SENSIRSESEMNAR M T mASE
lZE@ﬁF&EEEmEW STEEEZE
B s EMAR o

MESFAETERNEMBNRSELSE
i GReEEBLAER) Ml E M
BE- WReELABEMN CREELENAE
Bl By Bl RN BRI (E - RIRERR IR
BEE - i EMEZANREBETER
&E IR -

HEEER I REXRSELEM (B

TELBMMAR)  MEEMLANEDE

B e BREEXBERNBERR

BELENRa BB AZEFNEK

E{E ° FEUFBER TG SN BE R T

E%ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁa&ﬂﬁﬁ&ﬁ MIREEEEN
DETE e

Annual Report 2015/16 —F—F /— /N EF4E 4 97



Notes to Financial Statements

B RS AR YRR

31 March 2016
—T—X"F=A=1+—H

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
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(Continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and
financial asset at fair value through profit or loss at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in
the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset
or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
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(Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than construction contract assets, financial assets
and investment properties), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset's recoverable amount
is the higher of the asset’'s or cash-generating unit's
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal,
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

the party is a person or a close member of that

person’s family and that person:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

or

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a);
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
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(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)
(b) (Continued)

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to profit
or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are

as follows:
Leasehold improvement 20%
Machinery and equipment 10% to 24%

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment  20% to 33%
Motor vehicles 24%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss
in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.
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(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and
buildings (including the leasehold interest under an
operating lease for a property which would otherwise
meet the definition of an investment property) held
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
rather than for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes; or for sale
in the ordinary course of business. Such properties are
measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions
at the end of each of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values
of investment properties are included in profit or loss in
the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in profit or loss in
the year of the retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Customer contracts

Customer contracts secured on the date of acquisition
are recognised as cost of goods sold under the unit
of consumption method which is based on the sales
volume in each reporting period as a proportion of the
total estimated units of sales over the contract period.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and
risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other than
legal title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the
inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset
is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease
payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase
and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under
finance leases, are included in property, plant and
equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of the
lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets.
The finance costs of such leases are charged to profit or
loss so as to provide a constant periodic rate of charge
over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable
under operating leases net of any incentives received
from the lessor are charged to profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
and loans and receivables, as appropriate. The Group
determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction
costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets, except in the case of financial assets
recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with positive net changes in fair value presented
as other income and gains and negative net changes in
fair value presented as finance costs in profit or loss.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as
at fair value through profit or loss are designated at
the date of initial recognition and only if the criteria in
HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted
for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if
their economic characteristics and risks are not closely
related to those of the host contracts and the host
contracts are not held for trading or designated as
at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change
in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies
the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a
reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value
through profit or loss category.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. After initial measurement,
such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in other income
and gains in profit or loss. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in profit or loss in finance
costs for loans and in other expenses for receivables.
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(Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the
Group's consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent
it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues
to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each of the reporting
period whether there is any objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or the group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may
include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors
is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether impairment exists individually
for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not,
it includes the asset in a group of financial assets
with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are
not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is
measured as the difference between the asset'’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not yet
been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition).
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(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through
the use of an allowance account and the loss is
recognised in profit or loss. Interest income continues
to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount using
the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been
realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased
or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to
other expenses in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified as loans and
borrowings. The Group determines the classification of
its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and net of directly attributable transaction costs.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, interest-bearing other
borrowings, the liability component of convertible
bonds and promissory notes are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially
as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of
the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contract at the
higher of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period; and (ii) the amount
initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation.
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(Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Convertible bonds

The component of convertible bonds that exhibits
characteristics of a liability is recognised as a liability in
the statement of financial position, net of transaction
costs. On issuance of convertible bonds, the fair value
of the liability component is determined using a market
rate for an equivalent non-convertible bond; and
this amount is carried as a long term liability on the
amortised cost basis until extinguished on conversion
or redemption. The remainder of the proceeds is
allocated to the conversion option that is recognised
and included in shareholders’ equity, net of transaction
costs. The carrying amount of the conversion option
is not remeasured in subsequent years. Transaction
costs are apportioned between the liability and equity
components of the convertible bonds based on the
allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity
components when the instruments are first recognised.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts

is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using weighted
average method, and in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices
less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
on hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits and
assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted
as to use.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and
prior periods are measured at the amount expected to
be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each
of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the
jurisdiction in which the Group operates.
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(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and a
joint venture, when the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and it
is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

®* in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
a joint venture, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognised to the extent that
it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following
bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective
control over the goods sold;

(b) from construction, renovation and other contracts,
based on the percentage of completion basis,
as further explained in the accounting policy for
“Construction, renovation and other contracts”
below;

() from work orders of contracts for alterations,
additions, repairs and maintenance, based on the
value of individual work orders certified by relevant
employers;
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(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
(d) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms;

(e) interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument
or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset; and

(f) consultancy service fee income is recognised when
the consultancy services are rendered.

Construction, renovation and other contracts
Contract revenue comprises the agreed contract
amount and appropriate amounts from variation orders,
claims and incentive payments. Contract costs incurred
comprise direct materials, the costs of subcontracting,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable
and fixed construction overheads.

Revenue from fixed price contracts is recognised on
the percentage of completion method, measured by
reference to the percentage of certified value of work
performed to date to the total contract sum of the
relevant contracts.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they
are anticipated by management.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses exceed progress billings,
the surplus is treated as an amount due from customers
for contract works. Where progress billings exceed
contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits
less recognised losses, the surplus is treated as accruals
of costs for contract works.
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(Continued)

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group's operations. Employees (including
directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees
render services as consideration for equity instruments
(“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
for grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using a binomial model, further details of which
are given in note 31 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised
in employee benefit expense, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period
in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for
equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting
period until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group's
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss
for a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of
that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are
not taken into account when determining the grant
date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the
conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group's
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions
are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any
other conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.
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(Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because
non-market performance and/or service conditions
have not been met, no expense is recognised. Where
awards include a market or non-vesting condition,
the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or
service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised
as if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated
as a replacement award on the date that it is granted,
the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described
in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.
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(Continued)

Other employee benefits

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees
under their employment contracts on a calendar year
basis. Under certain circumstances, such leave which
remains untaken as at the end of the reporting period
is permitted to be carried forward and utilised by the
respective employees in the following year. An accrual
is made at the end of each reporting period for the
expected future cost of such paid leave earned during
the year by the employees and carried forward.

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the
“"MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group's
employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident
Fund Exempted Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance (“ORSQO") retirement benefit scheme for
those employees who are eligible to participate in the
ORSO scheme. This scheme operates in a way similar to
the MPF Scheme, except that when an employee leaves
the scheme prior to his/her interest in the Group's
employee contributions vesting fully, the ongoing
contributions payable by the Group are reduced by the
relevant amount of forfeited employer’s contributions.
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(Continued)

Other employee benefits (Continued)

Pension schemes (Continued)

The employees of the Group’'s subsidiary which
operates in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. This subsidiary is required to
contribute 5% of its payroll costs to the central pension
scheme. The contributions are charged to profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the central pension scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.

Dividends

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company's memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability
when they are proposed and declared.

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
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(Continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company's functional currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Differences arising
on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in profit or loss with
the exception of monetary items that are designated
as part of the hedge of the Group’s net investment
of a foreign operation. These are recognised in other
comprehensive income until the net investment is
disposed of, at which time the cumulative amount is
reclassified to profit or loss. Tax charges and credits
attributable to exchange differences on these monetary
items are also recorded in other comprehensive
income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a
non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or

loss, respectively).
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(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries
operating in the PRC are currencies other than
Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the reporting
period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into Hong Kong dollar at the exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their
statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are translated into Hong Kong dollar at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
are translated into Hong Kong dollar at the exchange
rate ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollar at weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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Significant accounting estimates

The preparation of the Group's financial statements
requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the
future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
each reporting period, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year,
are described below.

Construction, renovation and other contracts

As further explained in note 2.4 to the financial
statements, revenue and profit recognition on contract
works is dependent on the estimation of the total
outcome of the construction contract, as well as the
work performed to date. Based on the Group's past
experience and the nature of the contract activities
undertaken by the Group, the Group makes estimates
of the point at which it considers the work is sufficiently
advanced such that the costs to complete and the
revenue can be reliably estimated. As a result, until this
point is reached, the amount due from customers for
contract works as disclosed in note 20 to the financial
statements will not include profit which the Group may
eventually realise from the work performed to date.
In addition, actual outcomes in terms of total contract
costs and/or revenue may be higher or lower than
those estimated at the end of each reporting period,
which would affect the revenue and profit recognised in
future years.

Significant assumptions are required to estimate the
total contract costs and the recoverable variation works
that will affect whether any provision is required for
foreseeable losses. The estimates are made based
on past experience and knowledge of the project
management.
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Significant accounting estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired
at least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value
in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating
units and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 March 2016 was
HK$490,948,000 (2015: Nil). Further details are given in
note 15.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)
The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets at the end
of each reporting period. Non-financial assets are
tested for impairment when there are indicators that
the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset
or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs
of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the
fair value less costs of disposal is based on available
data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length
transaction of similar assets or observable market prices
less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When
value in use calculations are undertaken, management
must estimate the expected future cash flows from the
asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows.
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Significant accounting estimates (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Useful lives and impairment of property, plant and
equipment

The Company determines the estimated useful lives
and related depreciation for its items of property,
plant and equipment. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives of items
of property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. Management will increase the depreciation
charges where useful lives are less than previously
estimate, or it will write off or write down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may differ
from estimated useful lives and actual residual values
may differ from residual values. Periodic review could
result in a change in depreciable lives and residual
values and therefore depreciation expenses in future
periods.

Useful lives of intangible assets

The estimated useful lives of intangible assets reflect
management’s estimation on the Group’s intention to
derive future economic benefits from the intangible
assets, which are the revenue being generated from
the estimated units of sales over the contract period of
the Automotive Engine Sales Framework Agreements
(as defined in note 16). When useful lives of intangible
assets are different from those previously estimated, the
amortisation charges for future periods will be adjusted
accordingly.

Impairment of receivables

The Group records impairment of receivables based on
an assessment of the recoverability of trade and bills
receivables, and other receivables. The identification
of doubtful debts requires directors’ estimates. Where
the expectation is different from the original estimate,
the difference will impact on the carrying values of
the trade and bills receivables and other receivables
and doubtful debt expenses in the period in which the
estimate has been changed.
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Significant accounting estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value
Write-down of inventories to net realisable value is
made based on the estimated net realisable value of
the inventories. The assessment of the write-down
involves management's judgements and estimates.
Where the actual outcome or expectation in future is
different from the original estimate, the differences will
have impact on the carrying amounts of inventories and
the write-down/write-back of inventories in the period
in which the estimate has been changed.

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in the PRC and
Hong Kong. As a result of the fact that certain matters
relating to income taxes have not been confirmed by
the local tax bureau, objective estimate and judgement
based on currently enacted tax laws, regulations and
other related policies are required in determining the
provision for income taxes. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts originally
recorded, the differences will impact on the income tax
and tax provisions in the period in which the differences
realise.

Contingent consideration arising from business
combinations

One of the Group's business acquisitions has involved
post-acquisition performance-based contingent
consideration. The Group follows the requirement of
HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations to recognise
the fair value of the contingent consideration for the
acquisition, as of its acquisition date as part of the
consideration transferred in exchange for the acquired
business/subsidiary. The fair value measurements
require, among other things, significant estimation
of post-acquisition performance of the acquired
subsidiary/business and significant judgement on time
value of money. Contingent consideration shall be
remeasured at their fair value resulting from events or
factors emerging after the acquisition date, with any
resulting gain or loss recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income in accordance with HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business
Combinations.

31 March 2016
—E—RF=ZA=+—H

3. XESFHE (&)
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4.

128

Segment information

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group's
revenue, expenses and assets are generated
solely from the Civil Engineering and Construction
Business in Hong Kong. The management of the
Group made decisions about resources allocation
and assessed performance of the Group based on
the operating results from the business activities of
the Civil Engineering and Construction Business.
Accordingly, the directors are of the opinion that the
Civil Engineering and Construction Business in Hong
Kong was a single reportable operating segment of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2015.

During the year, on 12 October 2015, the Group entered
into a sale and purchase agreement (the "Engines
SPA") with Power Expert Global Limited (“Power
Expert”), an independent third party, to acquire the
100% equity interest in Well Surplus Enterprises Limited
and its subsidiaries (the “"Automotive Engines Group”)
and the loans owed by the Automotive Engines Group
to its then shareholder (the “Engines Acquisition”). The
Automotive Engines Group is principally engaged in
the development, manufacture and sale of automotive
engines. The Engines Acquisition was completed on
4 February 2016 and the Group has commenced the
Automotive Engines Business since then.
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Segment information (Continued)

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and service and
has two reportable operating segments as follows:

e  Civil engineering and construction segment — civil
engineering works and building construction and
maintenance works

e Automotive engines segment — development,
production and sale of automotive engines

Management monitors the results of the Group's
operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decision about resources allocations and
performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit or
loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit or loss
before tax. The adjusted profit or loss before tax is
measured consistently with the Group's profit or loss
before tax except that finance costs as well as head
office and corporate expenses are excluded from such
measurement.

31 March 2016
—ZT—X"E=A=+—H

4. DEBEFR (&)
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31 March 2016
—T—X"F=A=1+—H

4. Segment information (Continued) 4. HEER (&)

Civil engineering

and construction Automotive engines Total
TARIRREE RERDH @t
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

ZB-AF ZT-1F ZB-AF _T-1F ZB-AF _T-1F
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER THT TR THT TR TAT

Segment revenue ok e 467,631 702,85 141,704 - 609,335 702,856
Segment results DEEE (12,881) 27,918 5,195 - (7,686) 27,918

Corporate and unallocated %R ADEUA

income 424 -
Corporate and unallocated ERARDERT

expenses (14,717) (8,827)
Finance costs M%ER (10,370) (39)
Profit/(loss) before tax BREAEM /(E12) (32,349) 19,052

Other segment information: Ef D ZHER :

Capital expenditure BARY
- operating segment —RENT 58 2,294 1,139 - 1,197 2,294
- unallocated - Xxnk 756 -
1,953 2,294
Bank interest income |RITMEHA
- operating segment —R2nH 25 85 3 - 28 85
Depreciation e
- operating segment —RENT 587 204 704 - 1,291 204
- unallocated - Xxnh 90 -
1,381 204
Amortisation of intangible & A
assets - = 8,389 = 8,389 -
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31 March 2016
—ZT—X"E=A=+—H

4. Segment information (Continued) 4. DEFER (&)
Geographical information #h B2 & R
a) Revenue from external customers a) XKEIEEFE Y
2016 2015
—E—-XRF —E—hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FET
Hong Kong B 467,631 702,856
Mainland China A B A 141,704 =
609,335 702,856
b) Non-current assets b) HREBEE
2016 2015
—E-RF —E-hHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FAETT
Hong Kong EBE 2,330 2,994
Mainland China =i 7N 1,224,468 =
1,226,798 2,994
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31 March 2016
—T—X"F=A=1+—H

4. Segment information (Continued) 4. DLEF (&)
Information about major customers FEEFNER
Revenue from each major customer which accounted REETBEBEEMIM AL RNEB R AEE
for 10% or more of the Group’s revenue for the year, is W ABI10%E A F » G0 RET: -

set out below:

2016 2015
i —TRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Customer A ZEA 260,643 372,739
Customer B =FB 20,474* 159,698
Customer C ZFEC 97,700 108,016
Customer D ZFED 71,536 =
Customer E ZFEE 70,552 =
* Less than 10% of revenue * WA BI10%A T
Except for the aforesaid, no revenue from a single M bt EHN - HEE - EREL(HAREFH
external customer accounted for 10% or more of WA EI10%3K LA | o BB BT IRIR R AT
the Group's revenue. Government bureaus and (TEBERBT]) SBFBER RPN
departments of the Government of the Hong Kong A SR AE—=F o

Special Administrative Region (“HKSAR Government”)
are considered as a single customer in the above
analysis.
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Revenue, other income and gains

Revenue represents the appropriate proportion of
contract revenue from construction, renovation and
other contracts and the net invoiced value of goods
sold, after allowances for returns and trade discounts.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as

31 March 2016
—ZT—X"E=A=+—H

5. WA~ EBA R K

WAEHBREERE SRR ZE
B L EMAONAKRAEE B2 AR
EEEWERFE-

WA~ B AR W am 2 DT

follows:
2016 2015
—B-XKF —ZE-h*F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B et THET FET
Revenue WA
Contract revenue BHITRERA 467,631 702,856
Sales of goods HEEY 141,704 -
609,335 702,856
Other income and gains H A & Wz
Interest income MEWA 28 85
Consultancy fee income FEIEEE PN 1,200 1,200
Rental income HEBWA 8,400 1,400
Government subsidies* BRI 7 B * 28 /3
Gain on disposal of items of HEME -« #BRER
property, plant and equipment FAETE B 44 72
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries  HEHE R FAUWES 34 85 -
Gain on changes in fair value of &K&W ENFE
investment properties BEW s 14 = 200
Gain on disposal of investment HEREYER
properties sk 300 -
Sundry income TR A 671 133
10,756 3,163

Subsidies have been received from the Hong Kong
Vocational Training Council, an institution established
by the HKSAR Government, for providing on-the-job
training for graduate engineers and trainers. There are
no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to

these subsidies.

© BB BRI BB AR
DATEBEIRE (BEEBRFRT
BRI VIR - BB A A IS B
BORBAT IR A B o
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31 March 2016
—T—X"F=A=1+—H

6. Finance costs 6. MBER
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: MBERAFTIT
2016 2015
—E—XREF —E-hHF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Interest on bank and other borrowings  $R77 R H A& A & 340 39
Interest on promissory notes RPN 5,696 -
Imputed interest on convertible bonds AR ES 2 HEEF S 4,334 -
10,370 39
7. Profit/(loss) before tax 7. BEBAERN (EE)
The Group's profit/(loss) before tax is arrived at after REBZBRBANERN (BE) 2 Mk
charging/(crediting): (Gt A) T3I&IE :
2016 2015
—RF —T-RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$’000
P et THET FHET
Cost of inventories sold BEFEKA 135,775 =
Cost of services provided D IR AR A5 Ak AN 467,708 662,053
Depreciation e 13 1,381 204
Amortisation of intangible assets* #EF & E#HE* 16 8,389 -
Auditors’ remuneration Z SRR & 1,750 1,260
Gain on disposal of investment HEREHEN K
properties (300) -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HE B A T e s 34 (85) =
Employee benefits expense EERAFAXS
(exclusive of directors’ and chief (T"EREESEAES
executive’s remuneration THRABME
— note 8): — M35E8)
Wages and salaries IE&ENHS 26,754 30,690
Pension scheme contributions RIRBFIFTEI R
(defined contribution (TEEHKETE)
schemes) 1,145 1,140
27,889 31,830
Minimum lease payments under  &K&HEE TNHREES
operating leases 1,589 2,525

*

included in “Cost of sales” in the consolidated statement

The amortisation of intangible assets for the year is

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration 8.

Directors’ and chief executive's remuneration for the

year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section
383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of

Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is

31 March 2016

—E-XF=ZA=1+—H

EERRETHAERS

RIEEMARR - (BB R FHEG) F383(1)
@@ (b) OROHEARCAE (BEES
FZmER) RO F2BWBRIFANEER

RE{TRABMESIT

as follows:
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FATT
Fees e 639 576
Other emoluments: H b B -
Salaries, allowances and benefits e EE R
in kind BEMAa 3,018 3,465
Discretionary performance-related A 5% 3R 5 4
bonuses BB IE 1AL - 3,850
Pension scheme contributions RIRE AN FT IR
(defined contribution schemes) (EBHENRETED) 64 120
3,082 7,435
3,721 8,011
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31 March 2016
—T—X"F=A=1+—H

8. Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration 8 BEZERBS{THAEMS (&)
(Continued)

(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BYFHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive RERNTNFBIIERITEENESD
directors during the year were as follows: mr

Salaries, Discretionary

allowances performance- Pension
and benefits related scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses contributions remuneration

¥&oRMR  RREHH BRAKEN
we EVRE HRRRA AR kA
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Mt TER TEL THET THET TEL
2016 ZE-RE
Dr. Law Kwok Sang ZER BT (i) 96 = = = 96
Professor Patrick Wong ~ EREEHE
Lung Tak (i) 96 - - - 96
Ms. Mak Suk Hing BBt (i) 96 - = = 96
Ms. Chu Yin Yin REHLL (i) 101 - - - 101
Mr. Yip Tai Him LI5E i (il 101 - - - 101
Mr. Chan Kai Wing BRAGSR L (ii) 101 = = = 101
591 - - - 591
2015 —%-1F
Dr. Law Kwok Sang ZEEERBT (i) 144 = = = 144
Professor Patrick Wong HREYR
Lung Tak (i) 144 - - - 144
Ms. Mak Suk Hing vyl (i 144 = = - 144
432 - - - 432
Notes: B sE -
()  Resigned on 10 August 2015 iy MZ-ZE—RFNA+HEIMT
(i) Appointed on 20 July 2015 (il RZT—RAFtA-+HEZA
There were no other emoluments payable to the RERNBERSEMENE TBLIERITE
independent non-executive directors during the E(ZZE—AF &)

year (2015: Nil).
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31 March 2016
—ZT—X"E=A=+—H

8. Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration 8. EERESTHAESME (&)
(Continued)

(b) executive directors and a non-executive (b) BITEER—BIFHITESE
director
Salaries, Discretionary
allowances performance- Pension
and benefits related scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses contributions remuneration

¥eo RER  BRRHE R
e  EUNE  WBEBRL HEMR ams
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Mt TR TER TER ThR TER
2016 “—B-RE
Executive directors BoEs
Mr. Li Chi Pong ZafrE (i) - 633 - 20 653
Mr. Poon Yan Min AERLE 0] - 508 = 20 528
Mr. Wong Hin Shek TEERE (ii) - 1,677 = 14 1,691
(chairman) (£%)
Mr. Xing Bin iR (iii) = 200 - 10 210
- 3,018 - 64 3,082
Non-executive director ~ JEH1TES
Mr. Yau Kwok Fai HEETE (i) 48 - = = 48
48 3,018 - 64 3,130
2015 —B-If
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Li Chi Pong FioRrk (i) - 1934 3,000 60 4,994
(chief executive officer) (THRER)
Mr. Poon Yan Min EERTL (i) - 1,531 850 60 2,441
- 3,465 3,850 120 7,435
Non-executive director FHTEE
Mr. Yau Kwok Fai HEER L (i 144 - - - 144
144 3,465 3,850 120 7,579
Notes: MIsE -
()  Resigned on 10 August 2015 () R=ZE—RENATHEMT
(i) Appointed on 20 July 2015 (i) RZEB-—AF+A-+HEZE
(i) Appointed on 11 September 2015 iy R=E—RENAT+—HEZF
There was no arrangement under which a director AR - 74T pEE ok [B) 2= E (A B
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during SHZEE (S —FHE - &) o

the year (2015: Nil).
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31 March 2016
—T—X"F=A=1+—H

K
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Five highest paid employees 9.

The five highest paid employees during the year
included three (2015: two) directors, details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of the
remuneration of the remaining two (2015: three) non-
director, highest paid employees for the year are as

LEEEFMES

RERN  AEESTFMEERE=4 (=
T-RF ML) EE REOMS NS
N XS - RER - HBME (- F
—HF:=R) BeFHmEEENES
MBS BT

follows:

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind  #H& ~ 2B R EWFZ 1,866 2,796

Discretionary performance-related EARIRH A
bonuses BB TEAL 450 216
Pension scheme contributions RIRTEFIFT BB K 36 54
2,352 3,066

The number of non-director, highest paid employees
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is

MENFTIENNESHMMIEESH
BEABT :

as follows:
2016 2015
—E—XF —E—RHF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ 7T = 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,0017%8 7T 2= 1,500,000/ 7T 2 2
2 3
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31 March 2016
—ZT—X"E=A=+—H

10. Income tax 10. FRBH
Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman BERSHEREBRZESREN KR
Islands and the BVI, the Group is not subject to any Bl AEEBEFNFASHERABREX
income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI. Hong HENEMMEN - FENSHDIRIE
Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of REENBEBEE 2T ERE TN
16.5% (2015: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits #£16.5% (ZE—HF : 16.5%) 2 T & #
arising in Hong Kong during the year. Bisu Yunbo, a B AEBEZ2EMBARLLREEFA
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, is subject to a REBLEMEH ([REMEH]) HE
preferential corporate income tax (“"CIT") rate of 15%. 15%#H
2016 2015
—E-RF —T-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FETT

Current charge for the year FEHNHAEHA

Hong Kong profit tax BEBMEH - 3172

PRC CIT A7 PSR 2,626 -

Underprovision in prior years BAFERETR =
Deferred (note 29) RIE (FEE29) (1,852) 3
Total tax charge for the year FEBIES HAR%E 774 3,178
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31 March 2016
—T—X"F=A=1+—H

10. Income tax (Continued) 10. FT 8% (&)
A reconciliation of the tax expense/(credit) applicable BRAREBEARRGIREKREHHE R RIFTE
to profit/(loss) before tax at the statutory/applicable AERE AT BRABERGTERYALE
rates for the jurisdictions in which the Company and (BB OBRESIE (Ef) BIZE
the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax R EA RN MBS HE RN T -

expense at the effective tax rate is as follows:

2016 2015

—E-RE —T—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THERT FETT

Profit/(loss) before tax BMELRTS R (Ei8) (32,349) 19,052
At the statutory/applicable rates of BRI aLAERZEE

different jurisdictions BRAMEFE (5,415) 3,144

Adjustments in respect of current tax of  ¥381F HifE BV EAFH I8 A 78 2

previous periods - 3

Income not subject to tax BERB AU (117) (47)

Expenses not deductible for tax NETHORE R X 4,210 98

Tax loss not recognised I AR R TR IEE 18 2,096 =

Others HAtb > (20)
Tax charge at the Group's effective AEEZRBEBREMETERN

tax rate HIAX 774 3,178
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11.

12.

31 March 2016
—ZT—X"E=A=+—H

Dividend 11. RE
2016 2015
—E-RE —E—RHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAETT
Special dividend ) ¥ 50,000 -
Interim and final dividend FRHA R R ERAR B - =

The directors do not recommend the payment of any
final dividend in respect of the year (2015: Nil).

On 5 June 2015, the directors declared a special cash
dividend of HK$50,000,000, representing HK$0.25
per ordinary share in the issued share capital of the
Company, out of the share premium account of the
Company. The special cash dividend was approved
by the Company’s shareholders at the extraordinary
general meeting on 4 August 2015 and was paid on 2
September 2015.

Earnings/(loss) per share attributable to
owners of the parent

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the
loss for the year attributable to owners of the parent
of HK$33,123,000 (2015: profit of HK$15,874,000) and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
200,000,000 (2015: 200,000,000) in issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per
share amount presented for the year ended 31 March
2016 in respect of a dilution as the impact of the
convertible bonds had an anti-dilutive effect on the
basic loss per share amount presented.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings
per share amount presented for the year ended 31
March 2015 in respect of a dilution as the Group had no
potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during that
year.

12.

EETERRAFERMEMAKRIBHKE
(ZE—FRF:E)-

R-ZZE—hFALB  FFEREHHR
% A% 250,000,000/ 7T * HEREAR T
ZBRRERT - AARIEEITRATE
P& mAR0.2578 7T - RFrRIBR R EAAR
ARRN —E—HF/\ AN B ERRRE 5
ALt IR=ZFE—RAFNAZBIE
i e

SAREEAREERER (FHR)

RAEE  BREANEEBDRES QA%
A AFER 2 E51833,123,0008 70 (T —
T4 3% F15,874,0000 7T) RERND 2
17 @M% 2 hn#E - 15 £,200,000,0008% (=
T —A4F : 200,000,0000%) 5T &

MR BRRESZFEH 2 2 SRER
EBESEAEREEER  RUEREE
TE-RNF=ZA=1+—HIEFEZIZE
RERBSESEELEERE -

MRAEERBE_T—RAF=-A=1+—
BIEFERNTEERETREEHTLR
B M ERZEEMEY CBRELRR
FleBIELEERE -
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31 March 2016
—T—E=A=+—H

13. Property, plant and equipment

142

13. ¥)3% - EBERRE

Furniture,
Machinery fixtures
Leasehold and and office Motor
improvement equipment  equipment vehicles Total
., EEEER ;
REYE BERRE BARE RE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx Thn Fhn ThEn Thn
31 March 2016 “E-REZR=t+-H
At 31 March 2015 RZZ-1%=A
and at 1 April 2015; =+-8k
“E-hFMA-H
Cost K - 3,598 699 1,99 6,291
Accumulated depreciation ZiE = (1,446) (669) (1,982) (4,097)
Net carrying amount FEE - 2,152 30 12 2,194
At 1 April 2015, net of accumulated RZE-R1EWA—A
depreciation Mk 2:HrE = 2,152 30 12 2,194
Additions NE 428 865 660 = 1953
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 33) WEHBAR (H:33) = 45,470 91 = 45,561
Depreciation provided during the year ~ FRTERE (56) (1,244) (75) (6) (1,381)
At 31 March 2016, net of accumulated RZE—RE
depreciation =A=t+-H
ME2EnE 302 47,043 706 6 48,327
At 31 March 2016; m:f—ﬁﬁiﬂ
==l
Cost B 428 49933 1,450 1,433 53,244
Accumulated depreciation ZHmE (56) (2,690) (744) (1,427) (4,917)
Net carrying amount REFE 372 47243 706 6 48377
31 March 2015 ZE-TEZf=1-H
At 1 April 2014: R-Z-MEMA-A :
Cost AR - 1,308 695 2429 4432
Accumulated depreciation L:ANE = (1,308) (633) (2,387) (4,328)
Net carrying amount FEHE - - 62 42 104
At 1 April 2014, net of accumulated RZZ-MEMA-A
depreciation Nk 2:tiE = = 62 4 104
Additions NE = 2,290 4 = 2294
Depreciation provided during the year ~ FRTERE = (138) (36) (30) (204)
At 31 March 2015, net of accumulated RZE-RF=A=1-H
depreciation B 24TE - 2,152 30 12 2,194
At 31 March 2015: R-Z-HF=A=1-H:
Cost WA - 3,598 699 1,994 6,291
Accumulated depreciation ZHME = (1,446) (669) (1,982) (4,097)
Net carrying amount FEFE - 2,152 30 12 2,194
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14.

15.

31 March 2016

—E-XF=ZA=1+—H

Investment properties 14. REW =
2016 2015
—E-RE —E—RHF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
iEsd FHET FET
Carrying amount at beginning F Y
of year BREE 800 600
Gain on fair value changes N EEB R 5 - 200
Disposal HE (800) -
Carrying amount at end of year FREE@EE - 800
The Group's investment properties were revalued on RZZE-—RF=A=+—H rxEENK
31 March 2015 by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, BYERBYEESERGEMBERT
independent professionally qualified valuers, at BRATEMERIREERGEEEENRHE
HK$800,000, on the market value, existing use basis. /800,000 7T °
The fair values of the Group's investment properties REENREMER_ZT—RF=A="
at 31 March 2015 were measured using the direct — B A FEDEEEUMENRIE R
comparison method based on market observable BRGERBEELBEEITIE » WEKH
transactions of similar properties and were adjusted BUARMEOMENRIRAE - WA
to reflect the conditions and locations of the subject WOBMBRTESERNE_E -
properties and hence were classified as Level 2 of the
fair value hierarchy.
Goodwill 15. B8
2016 2015
—E—XF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FET
Cost and net carrying amount: BXR K BRTEHE
At 1 April MRIEA—A = =
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 33) B B A A (PFEE33) 490,948 -
At 31 March R=A=+—H 490,948 -

Goodwill acquired through a business combination is BEBX*EAEFAKENEEN D EITEEE
allocated to the cash-generating unit of the Automotive HEMK2IREGELSEN ([THEBHIIRESESE
Engines Business (the “Automotive Engines CGU") for B4z |) LA{ERERIE °

impairment testing.
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31 March 2016
—T—X"F=A=1+—H

15.

144

Goodwill (Continued)

Impairment test of goodwill

The recoverable amount of the Automotive Engines
CGU was determined based on a value in use
calculation using cash flow projections of financial
budgets covering a five-year period approved by
management. The discount rate applied to the
cash flow projections was 20.79%. Management has
determined the sales growth rate based on the sales
volume stipulated in the Automotive Engine Sales
Framework Agreements (as defined in note 16). The
cash flow projections of the Automotive Engines
Business beyond the five-year period of financial
budgets are extrapolated using a growth rate of 3%,
which did not exceed the long term average growth
rate of the industry. The discount rate used is before
tax and reflects specific risks relating to the units.

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation
of the Automotive Engines CGU for 31 March 2016.
The following describes each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Sales growth rate — The sales growth rates on product
types of the Group are based on the sales volume
stipulated in the Automotive Engine Sales Framework
Agreements (as defined in note 16).

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax
and reflects specific risks relating to the Automotive
Engines CGU.

Business environment — There is no major change in the
existing political, legal and environment conditions in
the countries with which and the country in which the
Automotive Engines CGU carried on its business.

Excel Development (Holdings) Limited 18z #2 % A PR A &

15. & (&)

g ZRERR
MEEPRBSELABU AR ST
FEREEEEMERERTFHNMREASR
NETRERAFENEREESER
MEFE - BERERAMEANEERERS
20.79% - ERECRB TEHBREEE
Ripz (E&RMT16) AEIANESE
EHEERR - AFHERPBRAESE
LHREXBNRSRERREMI%IEREK
HEET > L RYEBBITERAFHER
K o T FARRRIR R BER B AT M R R A 8
ZEFBEMNERRE

HAE_E-RFZA=t—HAREEPHE
ReELBUMNEREBERKERTRRK -
TR ERE LR RERRAET
AR EA AR IRIEN SR EZ/ER

HESEE - AEE R EREENHER
EEDLUSEHIM SSRGS (T8
BIE16) FTETRRRO 4R AR -

BB F — FRERMRLER R BB AT KR
REMAIEZEPRREEL BN ER

B o

SEER - BAERDRI SELBAE
RIS E R K B AT E A
ROBBEE 52 RBF KRS LR
ERED -
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16. Intangible assets

31 March 2016
—ZT—X"E=A=+—H

6. BLEE

Customer
contracts
EEEHN
2016
= — N
HK$'000
T
Net carrying amount: ARTEDHE
At 1 April 2015 RZZE—RFMA—H -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 33) Ue B B /B A &) (BIR¥33) 695,912
Amortisation provided during the year FARE BB (FisE7)
(note 7) (8,389)
At 31 March 2016 RZZE-—RF=A=+—H 687,523
At 31 March 2016: RZE—XRF=A=+—8":
Cost X < 695,912
Accumulated amortisation RET# (8,389)
Net carrying amount AREHE 687,523

Before the completion of the Engines Acquisition, on
18 November 2015, the Automotive Engines Group

LHRBBERTKA  R-F—RF+
—ATN\B - AEESHEEE I TR

entered into three separate automotive engine sales
framework agreements (the “Automotive Engine
Sales Framework Agreements”) with BAIC Yinxiang
Automobile Co., Limited, Chongging Mystery Speed
Automobile Accessory Limited and Chongging North
Automobile (collectively, the “Automotive Engine Sales
Parties”), all of them are independent third parties,
and pursuant to which the Automotive Engine Sales
Parties have agreed to procure pre-agreed quantities of
engines from the Automotive Engines Group from 2016
to 2020.

The directors are of the opinion that the Automotive
Engine Sales Framework Agreements are intangible
items that are separately identifiable and could
be measured reliably in accordance with HKAS
38 Intangible Assets. They are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses and
are amortised under the unit of consumption method
which is based on the sales volume in each reporting
period as a proportion of the total estimated units
of sales over the contract period of the Automotive
Engine Sales Framework Agreements.

MBEBRAR  EEARABEGBERA
AREELR mﬁ( MR RERBHE
HEFAWA ] 2EHRBYE=7) ETL
_T’\ﬁ_LE’JmE?ENf%%&K ek (17
BERBMHEER =) nglitmﬁ?f@
BIHEFI WA ERERZE—ARFEE
—EFRAERREBRBEIALIH TR
EHEEK -

ESRRTERBHIHEES ”Tﬁz’ﬁ%%#ﬁ
VHEBIMELIRR - XYARERE S
R38R ELEE T SEMFHE o ETR%K
R SR ERERIIE  XWREBERE
BAOEENSREHNEIHEERNTE
LBRIHEERBES QRN GRHEE
By 2 L BEsH -
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31 March 2016
—T—E=A=+—H

17.

146

Investment in a joint venture

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group
decided to cease the business of Excel-China Harbour
Joint Venture. The cancellation of the business
registration of Excel-China Harbour Joint Venture was
completed in November 2015.

Particulars of the joint venture are as follows:

17. A—RHEELENRE

REBEE-ZZT—"F=A=+—HLEFE "
AEBAERIERRPEBEHE 2%
e lRmPEBEMEER_T—AF+
— AEEIEEESR o

BRZAERENFBNOT

tm

Place of
registration
Name Business structure and operation

28 RBRR AR E A

Percentage of

ARl

Ownership Voting Profit
interest power sharing  Principal activity

g ZR MBI FEXE

Excel-China Harbour Joint Venture ~ Body unincorporate  Hong Kong

RahEEERE FRAEMER &R

The above investment in a joint venture was indirectly
held by the Company.

The Group has not shared any profit and other
comprehensive income of its joint venture during the
year (2015: Nil) since the joint venture was at breakeven
during the year.

Excel Development (Holdings) Limited 18z #2 % A PR A &

70 50 70 Engineering works
contractor

IRARH

AER—REEEENREBARBRE
KA e

AEERFRLEDHHSEERNEM
EHREMEERA (ZF—RF &)
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18. Financial asset at fair value through profit or
loss

31 March 2016
E—XRE=ZA=1+—H

8. BNV EZBERIIGZEHMEE

Contingent
consideration —
profit guarantee

HAKRE -
FERE
HK$'000
THET
At1 April 2014, 31 March 2015 W-T—-W&FMA—H - ~T—HF

and 1 April 2015 —A=T—Bk=ZE—RFNA—H -
Acquisition of subsidiaries WM B~ A (FisE33)

(note 33) 10,052
Change in fair value NEEES (416)
At 31 March 2016 R-ZE—RF=A=1+—H 9,636
Pursuant to the Engines SPA, Power Expert has BIEEFHE EE BEIRIRMIANEEE
warranted and guaranteed to the Group that the A S ARFE /‘Lﬁ?f@&%.mﬁ%? E?f

audited consolidated profit after tax of the Automotive
Engines Group (excluding any fair value adjustments
arising from purchase price allocation upon the
completion of the Engines Acquisition by the Group)
as prepared in accordance with HKFRSs, for the two
years ending 28 February 2017 and 2018 shall not be
less than HK$170,000,000 (“1st Guaranteed Profit”) and
HK$230,000,000 (“2nd Guaranteed Profit”) (collectively,
the “Guaranteed Profit”), respectively.

In the event that the Guaranteed Profit has not been
achieved, Power Expert shall compensate the Group.
Details of the calculation of the compensation are set
out in the Group's circular dated 19 January 2016.

The fair value of the profit guarantee was HK$9,636,000
as at 31 March 2016, which was determined by Jones
Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited,
an independent professional valuer, based on the
probabilistic flow method in which the cash flows
for each year represent the difference between the
guaranteed profit and the projected net profit. The
directors of the Company estimated the projected
net profits of the Automotive Engines Group under
four different scenarios with respective scenario
probabilities. The fair value of the profit guarantee was
the probability-weighted average of the present values
of the shortfalls between the guaranteed profits and
the projected net profits under the four scenarios. A
discount rate of 6.45% has been used to calculate the
present value of cash flows of the profit guarantee.

BRELEAGENEBEE T —+F N

—N\F-A= -H\EIJLFWI¢E%%§$%T\
ARBHEAN (TERFEANEEN U E
EEEREABEBIEMELENTAA
FERAE) Hﬁ”\%W >12170,000,0005 7T
(I8 —HR T % 1) 230,000,000/ 7T
([EZHRFRF ) (58 [REEF]) -

MARBEZERRBEH - THREIRIR AR A S
BEHEEE - B Eﬁﬁ1§i\§ﬁmu¥|ﬁ%¥
TN AEBBERA-—T—XR"F—A+NH

BAHREBERZZE—ARNE=ZA=1+T—HHA
1B /29,636,000 7T + I JhBBY BEMA
TEEWEF;H '?TJL%H:F,{E&PD uqﬁﬁﬁ j*ﬁ
BEMERITEETE  HAESFNHEERE
1&%1%m/mflJéﬁﬁfﬁiﬂlJ%@a’*lJZFanE’Q%%ﬁ o X

7§$1Eu+§’i$§é‘§m%%ﬁﬂ1$ﬁ

5 MR ARIE R E 2 FERIAE R o &
ﬂﬁ%a BB =R Al B2 PO {EE /RT
KT8 ﬁﬂi@ﬂZFﬁE’JTE%EZEETEE’J@ETJJD
HEFE - BHIR R6.45%E AERT & )& 7
1% IE/%//ILEZIE{EO
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31 March 2016
—T—E=A=+—H

18. Financial asset at fair value through profit or
loss (Continued)

Below is a summary of a significant unobservable
input to the valuation of the contingent consideration
together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at
31 March 2016:

18. ZEAVEEBERIIRZEHMEE

(%)
TXAR-E-—AEZA=+—R&ER
ARERENNER T REHAGER
EERGBENNTZHE -

Significant
Valuation unobservable Sensitivity of fair value to
technique input the input
EETHEE D EHBAEZ
fh{E 5% WAE BRE
Discounted financial instrument Probabilistic Discount rate 1% increase/decrease in
in respect of the profit flow method discount rate would result
guarantee in decrease in fair value by
HK$145,000/increase in fair
value by HK$149,000
wAMRENC IR SR T A BERG DA BAER % 6.45% BRIRE 7 T 1%
B BN TR R
145,000/ 7T/ A FEE N
149,000/ 7T
19. Inventories 19. 78
2016 2015
—E-RF —T-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TET
Raw materials M E 428 -
Finished goods RUAK 1,194 -
1,622 -
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20. Construction, renovation and other contracts

21.

31 March 2016
—ZT—X"E=A=+—H

20. B - FHREMEY

2016 2015
—B—RE —T—RHEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FET
Gross amount due from customers for Bl EFH

contract works BRI TR 30,150 31,028

Contract costs incurred plus recognised BE4RA KRR INEZS B
profits less recognised losses to date B R s AR B MR T 18 1,308,811 2,729,350

Less: Progress billings

B R AR B IR

(1,278,661) (2,698,322)

30,150 31,028

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable represented receivables for
contract works and sale of automotive engines. The
payment terms of contract work receivables are
stipulated in the relevant contracts and the credit
period is generally one month. The payment terms for
receivables arising from sale of automotive engines
are mainly on credit and the credit period is generally
one to three months. The carrying amounts of accounts
receivable approximate to their fair values.

As at 31 March 2016, retentions receivable included
in accounts receivable amounted to HK$128,806,000
(2015: HK$120,041,000) and are repayable on terms
ranging from two to three years.

21. FEWERRX

RWRRIEA N TR R E TE 3
B - NI REBRRONRITERE
BRPETH  MEEH-—RAS—MEA - X
BB TE R A BRI ITA
UEERE MEEH-—RAS—Z2=
A e BUCRFRORmMERL A ERS °

MN-ZE—XRE=ZF=1+—8 " EREXKH
B 5 K FE UL IR B 5K IE 5128,806,0007% JT
(ZZ—H S : 120,041,000 L) * &K
HANTRME=F -
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31 March 2016
—T—E=A=+—H

21. Accounts receivable (Continued)

150

21. EWRERR

(%)

The ageing analysis of the accounts receivable that I AR 5l S B 48 3R E R (E Y JE L BR K
are not individually nor collectively considered to be RN -
impaired is as follows:
2016 2015
—E—XF —E—hHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
Past due but not impaired: B HRB N SR (E
One to three months past due BE—E =@ A 2,926 8,330
Four to six months past due BHIMZE ] E A 225 209
Over six months past due %60 HAER 3 < E A 209 2
3,360 8,541
Neither past due nor impaired BR i B R R E 393,000 169,248
396,360 177,789

Accounts receivable that were past due but not
impaired relate to a number of independent customers
that have a good track record with the Group. Based on
past experience, the directors are of the opinion that
no allowance for impairment is necessary in respect
of these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancement over these
balances.

Accounts receivable that are neither past due nor
impaired relate to a number of independent customers
for whom there was no recent history of default.

As at 31 March 2016, no accounts receivable were

pledged to secure the Group's banking facilities (2015:
HK$86,161,000).

Excel Development (Holdings) Limited 18z #2 % A PR A &

BEEYERENEUERDERETE
VEF BRERAKERZHLEERL

RIBAEER  EFRR REEHRER
AHERERE  RAREHERERLE
BERNE - ANARAA2BIRE B RS

1 K%llﬁ%&ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ&ﬂﬁﬁ
an 3 B A (5 1B AR

BES R ENERBRRE SRS
BB R AR - 1RSI B R S
42 o

R_ET— NE=ZHA= + =l ﬁ{ﬂ}ﬁ}ﬁﬁ%
WEFUREAEENRITEER (=

— T4 : 86,161,000/ 7T) ©
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31 March 2016
—ZT—X"E=A=+—H

22. Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 22. FE{IFIE ~ R& R H KK

2016 2015
PAY:S —E—A1F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FETT
Prepayments FERNFIR 1,808 2,915
Deposits and other receivables g M EAth FE U R 16,034 12,923
Due from a related party (note) fEUk — 2 RE A A (M) 369 =
Due from the Vantage Group (note) W R EREEHRIE (M) 97 204
18,308 16,042
Note: The amounts were unsecured, interest-free and have no Mzt - BEARIEBEAEKR  2EREETFENR
fixed terms of repayment. By o
None of the above assets is either past due or T EER R ERE - LlARE
impaired. The financial assets included in the above ESHERLE E )BT HAN MR R RGEE SRR FE
balances relate to receivables for which there was no WRB R - Eh IR RIE € s AR B 8
recent history of default. The carrying amounts of other HAVEREE °
receivables and deposits approximate to their fair
values.
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31 March 2016
—T—E=A=+—H

2A3s

152

Cash and cash equivalents

23. BeERkBEEEY

2016 2015
ZEB-RF —T—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT

Cash and cash equivalents: ReERFLEEY
Cash and bank balances e LIRTT4565 16,885 133,546
Non-pledged time deposits A IR E HATE R - 10,147
16,885 143,693

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in RMB amounted
to HK$3,027,000 (2015: Nil). The RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China‘s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits
are made for varying periods of between one day
and three months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the
respective short term time deposit rates. The cash and
cash equivalents are deposited with banks with high
credit ratings and no recent history of default.

Excel Development (Holdings) Limited 18z #2 % A PR A &

R|EBMR  NEBUAAREFHENERES
K SR1T 45 88 323,027,000 T (ZF— A
F:E) ARBETSERABRAHEME
o HEAR TR B A3 COME B IR R BI) K
(GEIE - EERNEEERTE)  ~EEE
B BEREETINEXZFNRITHEAR
ERMREMEE

RITERRERBHRTERMNEEEDN
FENRREREVM S - RFAEE AN
THE  BHMERAFERNHPRNF—AE
=EATE - WHRR 2 BT BT 0 B
BFHE - Re MRS FEMEFRRERF
A= B BAN 48 58 KO RCER RO ERTT ©
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24. Accounts payable

31 March 2016
—ZT—X"E=A=+—H

24. FEATERRR

2016 2015

—E—RE —ZE—0HE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHERT FETT

Due to other third parties R EME =8 215,365 41,276
Due to the Vantage Group (note) et RIEEEHKIE (M) 10,431 60,188
225,796 101,464

Note: The amount was unsecured, interest-free and repayable
within 90 days (2015: no fixed terms of repayment).

An ageing analysis of the accounts payable as at the
end of each reporting period, based on the invoice
date, is as follows:

st : EERBEREER 28 RARIOX
(ZF—n0%F BEEENRY) REXK -

T RREZAPNESREHRENER
ZHRER DT

2016 2015

—B-RE —E—ARF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET TFATT

Current to 3 months BEZE=={EA 223,123 97,908
4 to 6 months M= 1E A 2,304 3,383
Over 6 months i@~ E A 369 173
225,796 101,464

At 31 March 2016, retentions payable included in
accounts payable amounted to HK$5,749,000 (2015:
HK$63,608,000) and are normally settled on terms
ranging from two to three years. The carrying amounts
of accounts payable approximate to their fair values.

Accounts payable are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled on terms ranging from 7 to 120 days.
The payment terms are stipulated in the relevant
contracts.

MNZZE—XRE=ZA=1+—8  EREXH
B B FE TR B8 518 5,749,000/ 7T (=
T—FRF : 63,608,000 7T) © —RANTF
ME=FHE - BENREFNEAERELQ
FEMBE -

ENRAREEATE - —RRNF7E120
RER > INEFRBEBELTETH -

Annual Report 2015/16 —Z—H /—/"EF3K 153



Notes to Financial Statements

B RS AR YRR

31 March 2016
—T—E=A=+—H

25. Other payables and accruals

25. Hit BN R R FARE H

2016 2015
—E-REF —T—RHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TA&T
Other payables H At - 3K 11,696 1,358
Accruals TEIREH 1,385 1,846
Due to a shareholder (note) R —RRRER IR () 6,000 -
Due to a related party (note) e — 2 BREE 5 RIE (MEE) 450 -
19,531 3,204
Note: The amounts were unsecured, interest-free and have no s ZEREAEEKR 2B NEBFER
fixed terms of repayment. H o
Other payables are non-interest-bearing and are Hit @t R RRAAE - YRR —FR

expected to be settled within one year.

The carrying

amounts of other payables and accruals approximate to

their fair values.

26.

BE - R EN R NIRIRE AN ARE(EE
HAFEEE -

H =4

Interest- bearing other borrowings 26. Htizt AR
2016 2015
“E-RE ZB-1%
Contractual Contractual
interest interest
rate (%) rate (%)
per annum Maturity ~ HK$'000  per annum Maturity ~ HK$'000
A A
Anr =R0
Rz FR%
(%) H#A TER (%) H#A THER
Current o)
Other loans - unsecured Hit B — EILH 5%-12% 2016-2017 13,013 N/A N/A =
ZE-RE- TR TR
—T+tE
Notes: B 5E
a) The Group's interest-bearing other borrowings are a) AKEMEMGEERERERIN—F

repayable on demand or within one year.

b)

Except for an unsecured other loan of $6,013,000 which

is denominated in RMB, all borrowings are in Hong Kong

dollars.
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27. Convertible bonds

The convertible bonds recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position are bifurcated into
two components for accounting purpose, namely the

31 March 2016
—ZT—X"E=A=+—H

27. JRARES
RErE M EIRARERN AT RRESEE
FRZMORMGED - 2R REEED
AR5 MRS 85 R IEE a2

liability component and the equity component, and the BT
movements of these components during the reporting
period are as follows:
Liability Equity
component component Total
&8EH D st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT TAT

At 1 April 2014, 31 March 2015~ R=Z—W$MA—B - ZF—1F
and 1 April 2015 ZA=t+t—HE-Z—HEFWMA—H - - =

Issue of convertible bonds for TMERSMFRITABRIRES (FH5533)

a business combination (note 33)

Interest expense (note 6) FEFE (fEE6)

335,982 390,716 726,698

4,334 - 4,334

At 31 March 2016 RZE—XRE=A=+—H

340,316 390,716 731,032
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31 March 2016
—T—XRF=A=1+—H

27.

156

Convertible bonds (Continued)

On 4 February 2016, the Company issued zero coupon
convertible bonds with an aggregate principal amount
of HK$390,000,000 to Power Expert as part of the
consideration for the Engines Acquisition. The maturity
date of the convertible bonds is on the second
anniversary of the date of issuance (i.e. 3 February
2018). The convertible bonds bear no interest on the
principal amount. No security or guarantee is granted
in respect of the convertible bonds. The convertible
bonds can be converted into 195,000,000 ordinary
shares in the Company at the initial conversion price of
HK$2.00 per conversion share (subject to adjustment
pursuant to the terms of the convertible bonds). The
Company may at any time before the maturity date by
written notice redeem the convertible bonds at 100%
of the principal amount. Any amount of the convertible
bonds which is redeemed by the Company will forthwith
be cancelled. At 31 March 2016, no convertible bonds
were converted and the outstanding principal amount
of the convertible bonds was HK$390,000,000.

As at 31 March 2016, the convertible bonds with an
aggregate principal amount of HK$390,000,000 were
deposited with an escrow agent in favour of the
Company as security for the 1st Guaranteed Profit
and the 2nd Guaranteed Profit. The convertible bonds
in the principal amounts of HK$165,750,000 and
HK$224,250,000 shall be released to Power Expert
if the audited consolidated profits after tax of the
Automotive Engines Group for the two years ending 28
February 2017 and 2018 are equal to or more than the
1st Guaranteed Profit and the 2nd Guaranteed Profit,
respectively, after the issue of the auditors’ certificate
for each period.

Excel Development (Holdings) Limited 18z #2 % A PR A &

27. A RES (&)

RZZE—RNFE-ANA  AARIMIEER
BRES 1T 4858 /5390,000,00078 TTHI Z B
AR ES - AEARE SIS EEA 0
SRE - AIRRESNT A BETAE
ME_@EF (BI-—Z—N\F_A=H)-
AR ESAASEL T8 o MESLA]
B EH R NI IER - AR ESHA]
BA) S AE BRI AR A 19 2.007%8 7T (7]
RIBATRRESFNGRFAR) LREARQ
7] #9195,000,0000% 5/ M o A2 7 A R
FHARBEREAEMBANIEASEDN
100% & Bl Al AR & %5 o AN R FTHE B /Y
RSB R E S GBI - R
T-XNEZA=+—H BETBRRES
WHB MUBRREFNREELASER
390,000,000/ 7T, ©

RZE—RE=ZA=+—8 Ke@EHEA
390,000,000/ 7T H) A IR AR (E 55 JE LA A A
AZBATFEATERRE  LMEAFE IR
B A & BB TERE R M 2 I - iR
BYREENEEZE_Z—+ER-_ZT—N
FZ_AZ+NBIMEFEZLEEZEA
M afoEERFBBEE —BRER
FIRE—HRF G - RSB
ZBAN B AR + AN B8 5165,750,0007 7T
%:.224,250,0007% 7T 2 Al R (5 5 15 & B
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28. Promissory notes 28. R R EE

2016 2015
—E-XF —EF—RHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FETT
First Note £—ZpE 179,979 =
Second Note FoER 246,597 =
426,576 -

Notes: PEE
On 4 February 2016, the Company issued two promissory RZB—R"E_AWAB - AAGIMHEERKE

notes with face values of HK$174,250,000 (the “First Note")
and HK$235,750,000 (the “Second Note”) in favour of
Power Expert as part of the consideration for the Engines
Acquisition. Both the First Note and Second Note carry
interest at a rate of 10% per annum. The outstanding principal
amounts plus any accrued interest will be repayable on the
maturity date falling on the second anniversary of the date
of the First Note and Second Note, i.e. 3 February 2018. The
carrying amounts of the First Note and Second Note at year
end were computed by discounting the face values of the

notes by the effective interest rate.

As at 31 March 2016, the promissory notes with an aggregate
face value of HK$410,000,000 were deposited with an
escrow agent in favour of the Company as security for the
1st Guaranteed Profit and the 2nd Guaranteed Profit. The
promissory notes in the face values of HK$174,250,000 and
HK$235,750,000 shall be released to Power Expert if the
audited consolidated profits after tax of the Automotive
Engines Group for the two years ending 28 February 2017 and
2018 are equal to or more than the 1st Guaranteed Profit and
the 2nd Guaranteed Profit, respectively, after the issue of the

auditors’ certificate for each period.

TR AH E 4R - EE 5 5 A&174,250,000%
T ([E—Z4 1) }%235,750,0008 7T ([F-=
B MMEARBRKEBEENITIHIRE - F
fgﬁ&”—%ﬁﬁﬁiﬂ%m%ﬁaoxg
BASHEERTMRTFSHERE —EER
E_FEMNEZ LE* (%ff—ﬂi—ﬂ
ZH) WEHBHABE FEBEAE_EER
ii%%@ﬁa%;%ﬂ%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ
rE

M-BE-—XNE=ZA=1+—H8 #EEA
410,000,000/ 7T 2 # i RBE AR R B A X =
ABFARERE  LEAE—EHRESHEE
CHERBHEFZER o WMAEERERMNE

EE—t+tFRZFE-)\FZRA=1+N\HIMW
BFE 2 EEZZRETE =D BIAER
BE-—HERERMNRE ZBREFRH - BN
F A B R EANE A& - E{E &174,250,000
& 7T % 235,750,000/ 7T 2 7, BRI I 2 BT
TREIRER o
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29.

158

Deferred tax

The movements of deferred tax liabilities during the
year are as follows:

29. RFERIE

BELERIBRENFANESMT

Depreciation
allowance in

Fair value
adjustments

excess of  arising from
related acquisition of
depreciation  subsidiaries Total
HBHE WEHEAR
wENH Aol
HESBE LFERER mat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TAT TAT
At 1 April 2014 R-E—mEMA—§ 5 - 5
Deferred tax charged to profit or FAEB= TR
loss during the year (note 10) EIERE (FHEE10) 3 - 3
At 31 March 2015 and 1 April 2015  R-ZTE—RF=A=+—HxK
“T-HFMA—R 8 - 8
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 33)  WBEME A (FFE33) = 104,983 104,983
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to FEREBENR S GtA)
profit or loss during the year EIRIERIE (PHFE10)
(note 10) 3 (1,855) (1,852)
At 31 March 2016 RZE—RE=R=+—8 11 103,128 103,139

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
HK$12,704,000 (2015: Nil) that are available indefinitely
for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax
assets have not been recognised in respect of these
losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been
loss-making for some time and it is not considered
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which the tax losses can be utilised.

Excel Development (Holdings) Limited 18z #2 % A PR A &

AEBEREBELEMTEE12,704,000/8
TT(ZF—0F: &) fJERHANEKE
EEXBBZ AR HRERVGEN - B8
R EEEERAELCHAEE  RRERZ
EERNVELECEBERE-RERNHEAR
Al WRR AT AR RE A FE SR st A Al A
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29. Deferred tax (Continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared
to foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprises established in Mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of
the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate
is 10%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding
taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries
established in Mainland China in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had unremitted
earnings amounting to HK$16,888,000 (2015: Nil) that
were subject to withholding taxes. In the opinion
of the directors, the Company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is not probable that these subsidiaries established
in Mainland China will distribute such earnings in the
foreseeable future. Accordingly, no deferred tax has
been recognised for withholding taxes that would be
payable on distribution of unremitted earnings by the
Group's subsidiaries established in Mainland China in
respect of earnings generated.

There are no income tax consequences attaching
to the payment of dividends by the Company to its
shareholders.

31 March 2016
—ZT—X"E=A=+—H

29 IEFERLIE (4E)

RIBHBECEMETOE - KRR BRI
HSNEBRARAINTREET RS
RBI0%BHBIA - ZBRKBA_FTT/N\F
—H—BEER YEAR-_FTTLF+
“A=t—RREANERN - EPEAN
HINTIREEMBRIEZERBRBIE
AR EAREENRKE - HAEEM
5 OBERARERR/I0% - Bt ~AEBEA
ERZERFBE R ERRIAZ
ZENF-—A—BBELMNRNAD IR
P BB IBFOR

RZZBE-—REF=ZA=+—H8 AKEAH
MIBHBL 2 RIE T % & F 7316,888,000/8
TO(ZF—RF &) - EFRB - AR
FlREMIEGIRMERZR 2 RH - MaF
TA FR B P 1 RS2 B B BB 8 DI AT R A SRR
AATRED IR BRAAN - Hitt - BER ALK
B B A B A R PTEL N &
M DR AR B R R BN N 2 RINTHHER
EFEFRIA -

AR FIRE RS 8T 4 FT 8B
R -

Annual Report 2015/16 —Z—H /—/"EFHK 159



Notes to Financial Statements

B RS AR YRR

31 March 2016
—T—XRF=A=1+—H

30.

31.

160

Share capital 30. k&
Shares gy
2016 2015
—E-XF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Authorised: ETERRA
500,000,000 500,000,000% (ZF—H%F :
(2015: 500,000,000) 500,000,0000% ) &A% HE{E
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 0.0 T E B 5,000 5,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRHRE
200,000,000 200,000,000 (ZZE—HF :
(2015: 200,000,000) 200,000,0000% ) & A{A
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 0.0178 T HY & @BAX 2,000 2,000
Share Option Scheme 31. BT

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 24 March
2016, the shareholders of the Company approved the
adoption of a new share option scheme (the “Scheme”).
Unless otherwise terminated or amended, the Scheme
will remain in force for 10 years from the date of
adoption.

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group's operations. Eligible participants
of the Scheme include full-time or part-time employees,
including any executive directors of the Group; and
any business or joint venture partners, contractors,
agents or representatives, consultants, advisers,
suppliers, producers or licensors, customers, licensees
(including any sub-licensee) or distributors, landlords
or tenants (including any sub-tenants) of the Group or
any person who, in the sole discretion of the Board,
has contributed or may contribute to the Group. The
Scheme became effective on 29 March 2016 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force
for 10 years from that date.
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BER-_T-—A"F=A_tOEEBZE
BRFBR - NARIRRILER BB E
at8l ([%ETEl)) ° BRIESTTRIEHERT -
LAT Bl B RN B LS 10F MERF AR ©

At Bl B RRAREEEEXINEL
Btz & ER2BERMB N EER - %
AEIZAERSEERREREREE
B BREAKEZEMATES  REXKE
Bz EAXBHALEEERMN  ABH -
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31. Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme
is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10%
of the total number of shares of the Company in issue
as at the date when the Scheme was approved by the
shareholders of the Company in a general meeting.
The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options to each eligible participant in the Scheme
within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further
grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject
to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive
officer or substantial shareholder of the Company, or
to any of their associates, are subject to approval in
advance by the independent non-executive directors.
In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director
of the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess
of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time or with an aggregate value (based on the price of
the Company'’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of
HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject
to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 21 days from the date of the offer, upon payment
of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the
grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the directors and ends on
a date which is not later than 10 years from the date of
the offer of the share options.

31 March 2016
—ZT—X"E=A=+—H

31. BBRESTE (&)

B RIR AT S ER B 2 RITEBRUE
=B A SHAEN (EREETER) AR
AIRNZA AR BB RAERR RS L1t
EEBZEBITRMAENI10% BIFE -
BTSRRI A1 218 A BRI N3 1T
TRz BRAER2EEZZARRN
HEARNAD BN EMREREETRHK
1% ° AE— TR ENBHZREZBEES
IRRRIR IR RS EHEE ©

BEEARTARRZES  ITHRASK
TERRIEMREZHEA - HEEEL
B IEATTE AL o - ERIRME
2 A REARTFARR Z EERIRK
BN TEFTREARE 2 BB AMEB
HAR R RIPMEMRIR R 2 BT #90.1% 3K
E (RARRRMNEL B8z B
HBEsH BB T BRES BERRER
RAG E=RHE -

BREBEkigE 2HANEN A BEF21X
AN RARAXNEEREARKIETR
TR EROBREZTEHAIHE
FET WETERBREZNE BE
10F 2 Bkt »
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31.

32.

33.

162

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The exercise price of the share options is determinable
by the directors, but should not be less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of the shares of the Company
as stated in the Stock Exchange daily quotation sheet
on the date of grant of share options; (ii) the average
closing price of the shares of the Company as stated on
the Stock Exchange for the 5 trading days immediately
preceding the date of the offer; and (iii) the nominal
value of the shares of the Company.

Shares options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

No share option has been granted since the adoption
of the Scheme.

Reserves

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the
movements therein for the year are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Business combination

On 12 October 2015, the Group entered into the
Engines SPA with Power Expert for the acquisition
of the Automotive Engines Group at an aggregate
consideration of HK$800,000,000 (the “Engines
Consideration”). The Engines Consideration consisted
of convertible bonds with an aggregate principal
amount of HK$390,000,000, promissory notes with
an aggregate face value of HK$410,000,000 and a
contingent consideration. The aggregate fair value of
the Engines Consideration on the date of completion
was HK$1,137,526,000.
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31.

32.

i

B ERT 8 ()

BREZITEETRESEE - 15D
RO Z & ()RR T B A 87
B2 TS B RERMH 2 AR ARID T
8 (R REELH B HRSER S B L
RGN Z AR B TRTE ¢ K
RARRRID 2 EME -

BRETER TRAEARNZAERERE
BRAELERE -

B R AL BIA TR - LR IR (AR
1 -

(G

AEEBEZT -

xBast

R-ZT—HFE+A+-H AEBHHEGE
RIKETURBREEHHE  WIRERE
800,000,000 7T ([ BHAR(E]) WS
BHEPKEE  c FHRRECELSHEE
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33. Business combination (Continued)

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of the Automotive Engines Group as at the date of

31 March 2016
—ZT—X"E=A=+—H

33. ¥K &6t (&)
BB B R B AT R A
REENATFENT -

acquisition were as follows:

Fair value
recognised
on acquisition

B R R R
N RFE
Notes HK$'000
ks FET
Property, plant and equipment M - HES N RAE 13 45,561
Intangible assets BAE 16 695,912
Cash and bank balances e KIRTTES 3,789
Inventories rEe 40,975
Accounts receivable JRE W BR TR 47,126
Prepayments and other receivables AN SRIE B B Ath FE LR 6,314
Accounts payable JE - BR K (80,661)
Other payables and accruals Hi BN R RFBIREA (1,240)
Tax payable JERT 1A (300)
Interest-bearing other borrowing Hipst B (5,915)
Deferred tax liabilities REBIAAE 29 (104,983)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BRATEER

A BRI B EFERRE 646,578
Goodwill on acquisition Uk B 1 e 22 15 490,948
1,137,526

Satisfied by: IATFEE AT
Convertible bonds AR ES 27 726,698
Promissory notes HHEE 420,880
Contingent consideration — profit guarantee  ARIE — B FRE 18 (10,052)
1,137,526

The fair values of the accounts receivable and other
receivables as at the date of acquisition amounted to
HK$47,126,000 and HK$6,314,000, respectively. The
gross contractual amounts of accounts receivable
and other receivables were HK$47,126,000 and

HK$6,314,000, respectively, of which no receivables are

expected to be uncollectible.

& Y AR R B E At JE MO A B B HR RO 2
18 2 Bl /347,126,00078 7T 26,314,000/ 7T °
AR R B BENEED R
47,126,000 7T 56,314,000 7T + FEEAHL X
F R A R E
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33. Business combination (Continued)

The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$4,290,000
for this acquisition. These transaction costs have

been expensed and are included in “administrative

33. ¥% &0t (&)
7N £ B Bt It W B = TH EE 424,290,000 TT
BWRZGEA - ZERHRADZHERETA
mAEBEREMEZABARAN [1THRHA

expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or e
loss and other comprehensive income.
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the FRANBEENRSRESTOT :
acquisition is as follows:
HK$’000
FETT
Cash and bank balances acquired and AR EEREENREREL
net inflow of cash and cash equivalents EUHEIR & RIBITABR AR
included in cash flows from Re MReFEMRERA
investing activities 3,789
Transaction costs of the acquisition included FFAKEEBFEENRERE 2
in cash flows from operating activities WHEEEIEH R HRAR (4,290)
(501)
Since the acquisition, the Automotive Engines Group BWEBEENUR  MEHHTEREBUAEE
contributed HK$141,704,000 to the Group's revenue BHE_ZT—-—X"F=A=+T—HLEFEHKA

and HK$3,165,000 to the consolidated profit for the
year ended 31 March 2016.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of
the year, the revenue of the Group and the loss of the
Group for the year would have been HK$640,606,000
and HK$30,713,000, respectively.

164  Excel Development (Holdings) Limited f6z512E/% B R A 7]

X ,Zv? (=] /ﬁ:l %'J
3,165,000/ 7T °

Al B Bt 7141,704,000% 7T &

i & GER F AT - ANEBRF RH KA RE
18 1 2 Bl £640,606,000/% T 530,713,000/
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34. Disposal of subsidiaries

On 3 June 2015, the Group entered into a conditional
agreement with an independent third party, to dispose
of the Group's entire equity interest in Top Integration
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group,
together with its wholly-owned subsidiary, Gadelly
Construction Company Limited (collectively the
"Disposal Group”), for an aggregate cash consideration
of HK$8,920,000 (the “Disposal”). The Disposal Group

31 March 2016
—ZT—X"E=A=+—H

4. HEKBE A
R-_ZE—AF~A=ZH A5EH—F
BIYFE=FRINAGEHZE  ABER
SERHE2EWEB A A Top Integration
Limited#) 2 &B AR #2 & /] H 2 & i B 2 7
MEFEEERAG (HBAIEES
®]) - 43R % K E £A8,920,000% 7T ([H
ERH])  c HEEEFEXEIARTIIEMN
MZENEE - HEFEENR_T—0F

is mainly engaged in civil engineering works and BT HEER
construction and maintenance. The Disposal was -
completed on 3 June 2015.
2016
—B-REF
Note HK$'000
iz FET
Net assets disposed of: EHENEEFE
Cash and bank balances B MIRTTHE 8,823
Prepayments AR 12
8,835
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries & BB A Al By e 5 85
8,920
Satisfied by: AT3IEE T
Cash B 8,920

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash
equivalents in respect of the Disposal is as follows:

EREESTHEZRERBESSEYERAND
i O

HK$'000

FHET

Cash consideration RWERE 8,920

Cash and bank balances disposed of EHEMNRE RIBITEH (8,823)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in FEALEFTEZ

respect of the Disposal ReRBeFEMFRA 97
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35.

(a)

166

Contingent liabilities

At 31 March 2016, the guarantees given by the Group
to certain banks in respect of performance bonds in
favour of certain contract customers amounted to

HK$23,435,000 (2015: HK$23,055,000).

At 31 March 2015, the Company had given unlimited
performance guarantees in favour of a customer for
contract works (the “"Contract Customer”) in respect of
losses, claims, damages, costs and expenses caused by
non-compliance with the terms and conditions of the
construction contract entered into between the Group
and the Contract Customer.

In the ordinary course of the Group's construction
business, the Group has been subject to a number of
claims due to personal injuries suffered by employees
of the Group or the Group's subcontractors in accidents
arising out of and in the course of their employment.
The directors are of the opinion that such claims are
well covered by insurance and would not result in any
material adverse impact on the financial position or
results and operations of the Group.

Excel Development (Holdings) Limited 18z #2 % A PR A &

35. XRAREE

(a)

R=B-AFE=A=+—0  AKERE
TETANEF ZBORETNAE TR

B IER A23,435,0008 T (ZZE—H
£F 1 23,055,000/ 7T) ©

RZZE—RAF=A=+—H KxAAIKR—
ZENTIREFP ([GHOFEF]) ZMFTL
MEESH  ARBIRAZANEPITE
TR KRR G L ERMBKR - &
R BT KAKRRAXIEHE ERENOE
& e

EAEEZEXRBNETBRES  ~&E
SARENBERNEERRSEXEHMEE
ERINEBAFBEMRARBERKET
R - EERR  ARRBBNRERAE
REE - TEHARKENMBEIRNEESE
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36. Operating lease arrangements

As lessor

The Group leases certain of its equipment under an
operating lease arrangement. The lease for equipment
is negotiated for a term of thirty months.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
total future minimum lease receivables under a non-
cancellable operating lease falling due as follows:

31 March 2016
—ZT—X"E=A=+—H

36. BEMERH
fERHEEA
AEERBEEMELHFAAEE TR

B RHpPAERNRBEHEFHAR=1TE
B o

RBERR - NEBRE AT RELEHE
EAN TN B HER R RKEHE AR
LU

2016 2015

—E—REF —E—0E

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET FHET

Within one year —FR 8,400 8,507
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_ZFHE (BREEEMF) 3,050 11,343
11,450 19,850

As lessee

The Group leases certain of its office properties under
operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties are
negotiated for terms ranging from one to four years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

EREBEA
AEERBEEHELHHEAREETHA
ENE - KHEERNMEREFHN T —
EJUECE

IR - ARERETE B A
SAN T 5 B MR AR RER S B
mT :

2016 2015

—E—RF —E—hE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHERT FHET

Within one year —FNRN 5,686 3,973
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_ZFhE (BREEEMF) 1,866 2,735
7,552 6,708
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37. Related party transactions 37.BRELXRS
(a) In addition to the transactions and balances detailed (a) BREARIEHREREMIL D sl H32 5 K4S
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had BRON - REBRFR D EREE T ETT 5
the following transactions with related parties during R
the year:
2016 2015
—B-RF —E-hF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THET FET
() Subcontracting fee paid to N TREEEHN
the Vantage Group DL 8,037 158,101
(i) Subcontracting fee paid to a joint YNFEEEH
venture of the Vantage Group —HEErENSIBE — 1,041
(iii) Rental expense paid to the Vantage Y/ FE{EEH
Group MHEER 103 620
(iv) Corporate service fee paid to a YN FHRHARG —REE
related party which is controlled PRIEHIEBRE T B3
by a director of the Company PR 7% & 484 -
(v) Financial advisory fee paid to YR FHART —ZRESH
a related party which is controlled 72 51| 7 B B 7 O B SRR R
by a director of the Company & A
1,880 =
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37.

(a)

38.

Related party transactions (Continued)
(Continued)

On 5 June 2015, the Vantage Group ceased to be
a related party of the Group, as Vantage, the then
intermediate holding company, had disposed of its
entre shareholding in the Company and items (i) to (iii)
ceased to constitute related party transactions from 5
June 2015 onwards. As a result, only those transactions
with the Vantage Group for the period from 1 April
2015 to 5 June 2015 are included in the above related
party transactions disclosures during the year ended 31
March 2016.

The above transactions were conducted on terms
and conditions mutually agreed between the relevant
parties.

Outstanding balances with related parties

Balances with related parties are included in notes 22,
24 and 25 to the financial statements.

Compensation of key management personnel of
the Group

Further details of compensation of key management
personnel of the Group are included in notes 8 and 9
to the financial statements.

Except for item (a)(ii), the related party transactions in
respect of item (a) above also constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Financial instruments by category and fair
value of financial instruments

Except for the profit guarantee which is classified as a
financial asset at fair value through profit or loss and
measured at fair value, the financial assets and liabilities
of the Group as at 31 March 2016 and 2015 are loans
and receivables and financial liabilities at amortised
cost, respectively.

37.

(a)

38.

31 March 2016
—ZT—X"E=A=+—H

RELFRS (#)

(&)

RZZE—REX ARR  BEEETEAR
AEBENREY - AR ERFHFNE
BRARAFEHEERARRINZBAE
mMEBEOEHE T —RAF~AAAR
THEKEELIRS - Bt - R
EFNA—RE-_T-—AF NAOBEHH
HEFEBNXZEEN Li#HE —T—
NEZA=+—BHULFENBETRXSHH

Ego

=

Eit 2 5 TyiRA &I BB E B R R
{ERIFAHETT ©

BARRE T W RIBE SRR

B[R 7 BV A R DI O R A R MY 22
24525 °

REEFEZEEA SR

ERAEBEE2EIRE ASRMAE — 5
(EES P E LIS OR

B EMRRBFIAATZAE - AR Lii(a)
EMRER RS (Br(a)i)BS) TMEK

TRMIAPERERIAZAFE

SR BARAFEEBIREIIKRNIEZEAF
BFf8 2 eRMEENGMNREIN  ~EE
R-ZE—RER-_T—RF=A=1+—8
ZEBMEERBEDBIRER L EUFIA
FRIZBHERAGHEZ BB E -
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31 March 2016
—T—XRF=A=1+—H

39.

170

Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments

Management has assessed that the fair values of
cash and bank balances, accounts payable, financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, the current portion of loans and interest
receivables, financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals to their carrying amounts largely
due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The Group's finance department headed by the
director is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The finance department reports directly to
the director and the audit committee. At each reporting
date, the finance department analyses the movements
in the values of financial instruments and determines
the major inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation
is reviewed and approved by the directors. The
valuation process and results are discussed with the
audit committee twice a year for interim and annual
financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the liability portion of convertible
bonds and promissory notes have been calculated
by discounting the expected future cash flows using
rates currently available for instruments with similar
terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The Group's
own non-performance risk for convertible bonds and
promissory notes as at 31 March 2016 was assessed to
be insignificant.

Excel Development (Holdings) Limited 18z #2 % A PR A &

9. EMTAZAFERLAFEER

BRRE MIRTTES - BAERR - StATR
NHE - ReRHEMRERZEREE
ER N YR Bz BNEAER D ~ T AE A&
NRERERERZEHBERSRERA
A BEEERAZETLAZAVESR
HERmERS -

AEBHEERENUBHAEETSR
TARFEFEBRREERF - BHHEE
AEFREZZEERE - REHREH
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HERERNEIEZ2H - HEHESEH
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Fatam R AETR R FEMBRE
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39. Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial

instruments (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial
instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:
As at 31 March 2016

31 March 2016
—ZT—X"E=A=+—H

9. EMITAZAFERLFEER

(%)

AFEER
TRAPAEESBTAZ D PETEE
%

BRAFEHEZEE :
RZE—NF=ZHA=4+—H

Fair value measurement using

ERATFIEEETAFENE

Quoted prices

Significant

Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

BRABE BEARAHE

SRR ISHRE WAEE BWAEE
(%6—18) (%=FE) (%=8E) et
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAETT FHETT FET

Financial asset at fair XA F(EE B
value through profit ByiR 2

or loss SREE - - 9,636 9,636

The Group did not have any financial assets measured
at fair value as at 31 March 2015.

The Group did not have any financial liabilities
measured at fair value as at 31 March 2016 and 2015.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets
and financial liabilities (2015: Nil).

RZE-—RAF=A=+—H AEETE
TR AFEFENEREE

RZBE-—RERZZE-—RAF=A=+—
B AREESEEFARAFEFENESE
afE-

FRH eREENREHREBEF ERFE_

BATEN S MLEEE  FEEE
WA= (“T—8%F  m)
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31 March 2016
—T—XRF=A=1+—H

40.

172

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group's principal financial instruments include
the gross amount due from customers for contract
works, accounts and other receivables, prepayments
and deposits, accounts and other payables, accruals
of costs for contract works, cash and cash equivalents,
promissory notes and convertible bonds. Details
of these financial instruments are disclosed in the
respective notes to the financial statements.

The Group's ordinary activities expose it to various
financial risks, including foreign currency risk, credit
risk and liquidity risk. The risks associated with financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are described below. Management monitors
closely the Group's exposures to financial risks to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented in a
timely and effective manner.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk means the risk on the fluctuation
of fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments
which arose from changes in exchange rates.

The Group’s civil engineering and construction business
is located in Hong Kong and is transacted and settled
in HK$ while the Group’s automotive engines business
is located in Mainland China and is transacted and
settled in RMB. Accordingly, the directors considered
that the Group's foreign currency risk is insignificant.

Excel Development (Holdings) Limited 18z #2 % A PR A &
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40. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to bank
balances and accounts and other receivables. The
Group's maximum credit risk exposure at the end of the
reporting period in the event of other parties failing
to perform their obligations is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Management monitors the creditworthiness and
payment patterns of each debtor closely and on an
ongoing basis. It is the Group's policy that all customers
of automotive engines who wish to trade on credit
terms and subject to credit certification procedures.
The Group's accounts receivable from contract works
represent interim payments or retentions certified by
the customers under terms as stipulated in the contracts
and the Group does not hold any collateral over these
receivables. As the Group's customers in respect
of contract works primarily consist of government
departments and developers or owners with strong
financial backgrounds, management considers that the
risk of irrecoverable receivables from contract works is
not significant.

At 31 March 2016, the Group had certain concentrations
of credit risk as 28% (2015: 47%) of the total accounts
receivable were due from the Group's largest external
customer and 87% (2015: 91%) of the total accounts
receivable were due from the Group’s five largest
external customers, respectively.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from accounts and
other receivables are disclosed in notes 21 and 22,
respectively, to the financial statements.

31 March 2016
—ZT—X"E=A=+—H

40. B EBEEBERBEK (&)

FERRE
AEENEERRTIZ2REBITHEBIAR
R U R TR e L At FE ALK = {15 E At AR B &
TAREBITERY  AEERKREHER
BEHNSEEEERREAENESREE
R PRI T PSR ERE(E

EREERBEMEYERREBANGE
BIEFER - AEEHNBRBABERE
REEHEENAEZHRETFLETE
B WALETEERIZRRF - AKENE
) TIZ R AR SRR B & A9 RT B IR
NP RREREFPRENREREA
M AN &5 B 3 A 5% IR MR 1R A (R AT 4
e ARAEENGNIREPIERK
REFIART N EENEREHEET - &
BER A TEREE X TR REER R
ARTS

MN-_ZE—XRE=ZF=1+—8  X&EBFHE
ETEERRBRSERHER  BRERESE
2% (T —FHE :47%) RBEKXRE
EHSAINBES - MEKEREEF A
87% (ZZE—R%F : 91%) Bk A REEH
ARINBES ©
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31 March 2016
—T—XRF=A=1+—H

40. MEEREEEFERBEK ()

40. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to monitor regularly the current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and long term. In addition, banking facilities have
been put in place for contingency purposes.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of
the Group’s financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates, or if
floating, based on rates as at the end of the reporting

AEENBRRRERERRE LARRS
BeHmF - NEREEREHREFHER
XEX2emEnERRERE  KEtm
mEEERLREHNRBHESFER It
Sh - REEERHIRITEER - UWETH
2 e

TRAVARBEN A ENRE S
ORGSR OH  ENREBEAARUIRR
ERE (BRERANMNEY (NEFEF
) BRERHREHERFONEFEOR
BN RASE R AEENRT B
=

period) and the earliest date that the Group could be
required to repay:

Within 1 Between Between
year or on 1and 2 2and5
demand years years Total
—FANEARE
EREE —EZF —ERF st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TAT TAT

As at 31 March 2016 R-ZEBE-XE=ZHA=+—H

Accounts payable JETBRFR 220,647 2,896 2,253 225,796
Accruals of costs for BRAHIENA
contract works 38,688 — — 38,688
Other payables (note 25) Hib R (Bi5E25) 18,146 = = 18,146
Interest-bearing other TEEMBE R
borrowings 13,903 - - 13,903
Convertible bonds AI R E 5 - 390,000 - 390,000
Promissory notes HHEE - 492,000 - 492,000
291,384 884,896 2,253 1,178,533

As at 31 March 2015 R-EBE-HFE=HA=+—H

Accounts payable FETBRFR 38,439 60,782 2,243 101,464

Accruals of costs for TBREHTEKA
contract works 45,237 = = 45,237
Other payables (note 25) Hop e R (PREE25) 1,358 - - 1,358
85,034 60,782 2,243 148,059
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31 March 2016
—ZT—X"E=A=+—H

40. Financial risk management objectives and 40. B EREERERBE (H)
policies (Continued)
Capital management ExEHE
The primary objective of the Group's capital AEEESEERRNEIEZRFERERA
management policy is to ensure that the Group will be SERFERLSE  FAREBEB(LERKER
able to continue as a going concern while maximising REEBR KA R BAERRIEAL ©
the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of
the debt and equity balance.
The directors review the capital structure on a EEg TR EARRE - ERULIERR
periodical basis. As part of this review, the directors THEN—HD  EFEFEEKARER
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated HESHEBEMRRE  WHBRMKREITR
with each class of capital and will balance the Group'’s MEEKNEERRBEEBR T ERERD
overall capital structure through new share issues as BEE R -
well as raising new debts or repayment of existing
debts.
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which AEBERBRLEREZER  MiERL
is net cash and bank balances divided by the total ERBRE RIRITERFERAERERH
capital. Net cash and bank balances are calculated AE R RRITEBFEAIKRTEE
as the total of interest-bearing borrowings, liability ;o AIMBREFHAERS REAKZERD
component of the convertible bonds and promissory BERRE LR FEYFHE - ERER
notes less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital EEARHEANEGER KT —RF
refers to equity attributable to owners of the parent. ZA=1T—HBERLENT :
The gearing ratio as at 31 March 2016 was as follows:
2016 2015
—E-AF —F—HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FETT
Interest-bearing other borrowings (note 26) Efb st BA& K (FI7E26) 13,013 -
Liability component of convertible bond — AJ# X EHH & F365H
(note 27) (PBEE27) 340,316 -
Promissory notes (note 28) A (BPEE28) 426,576 =
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B HERESEEY (16,885) (143,693)
Net cash and bank balances R MIRITHERFE (763,020) (143,693)
Equity attributable to owners of the parent SR RI#E A AEH#ER 532,951 226,127
Gearing ratio (%) TBARLL R (%) 143% N/A T~ B
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31 March 2016
—T—XRF=A=1+—H

41.

42.

176

Event after the reporting period

On 24 May 2016, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with Global Harvest Incorporation,
an independent third party, to acquire the entire equity
interest in Keenmount Limited and its subsidiaries
(collectively the "Automotive Wheel Group”) at a
consideration of HK$390 million. The consideration will
be satisfied by:

(i) The issuance of 2-year convertible bonds of
HK$390 million at an initial conversion price of
HK$2.0 per conversion share; and

(i) Contingent consideration.

The Automotive Wheel Group is principally engaged

in the assembly of automobile wheels and tyres and

supply of assembled wheels and tyres to automobile
manufacturers. As at the date of approval of these
financial statements, this transaction has not been

completed and is subject to the preparation of a

circular and necessary approvals from, including but

not limited to, the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the
shareholders of the Company as stipulated in the sale
and purchase agreement.

Further details of the proposed acquisition of the
Automotive Wheel Group are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 24 May 2016.

Comparative Amounts

As further explained in note 2.2 to the financial
statements, due to the implementation of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622) during the
current year, the presentation and disclosures of
certain items and balances in the financial statements
have been restated to conform with the current year’s
presentation and disclosures.

Excel Development (Holdings) Limited 18z #2 % A PR A &

41.
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31 March 2016
—ZT—X"E=A=+—H

43. KA T 2 BT &R

43. Statement of financial position of the

Company

Information about the statement of financial position of
the Company at the end of the reporting period is as

follows:

BBARFARBE DR BBRRE 2 E
BT

2016 2015
—E-RF —T—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Property, plant and equipment YIZE - SRR 425 -
Investment in subsidiaries R BRRZIKE = =
Total non-current assets IEmEBEERAE 425 -
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Due from subsidiaries VNG /S 1,184,717 86,379
Prepayments, deposits and other BNFE - 22k
receivables H b fE U TR 1,023 196
Cash and cash equivalents Be kIR EEY 1,419 316
Total current assets MEEERE 1,187,159 86,891
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAE
Other payables and accruals Hib K R TERE A 9,777 440
Interest-bearing other borrowings FFEHAMERK 7,000 -
Total current liabilities mEAEERE 16,777 440
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEHAE 1,170,382 86,451
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EERERRBAS
LIABILITIES 1,170,807 86,451
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Convertible bonds Al E A 340,316 =
Promissory notes A B 426,576 -
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIBEE 2 -
Total non-current liabilities B aERE 766,894 =
Net assets BEFE 403,913 86,451
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31 March 2016
—T—E=A=+—H

43. Statement of financial position of the

178

Company (Continued)

43. KRB 2 MBRR T (&)

2016 2015
—B-AF —FT-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FET
EQUITY R

Share capital &N 2,000 2,000

Equity component of convertible AR ES 2 m A D (M)
bonds (note) 390,716 -
Reserves (note) s (FsE) 11,197 84,451
Total equity WEREES 403,913 86,451
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43. Statement of financial position of the
Company (Continued)

44.

31 March 2016
—ZT—X"E=A=+—H

43. KRB 2 MBRRER (&)

Note: BT -
A summary of the Company'’s reserves is as follows: RARZHBHENT :
Equity
component

Share of convertible Accumulated

premium bonds losses Total
BB THRRESZ E4
HE ESZID F =] et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET FAT FET
At 1 April 2014 RZE—NFMA—A 95,486 - (10,613) 84,873
Total comprehensive FAHEERE
loss for the year - = (422) (422)
At 31 March 2015 and RZE—AF=H
at 1 April 2015 =+—8K
RZZ—RF
mA—A 95,486 - (11,035) 84,451
Total comprehensive FARHEEERE
loss for the year - - (23,254) (23,254)
Issue of convertible BITABMRES
bonds for a business LAEZETS & 6F
combination (note 27) (BF7E27) = 390,716 = 390,716
Special dividend paid EAERIRRE (MiEE11)
(note 11) (50,000) - - (50,000)
At 31 March 2016 RZB—RF
EF=E—E 45,486 390,716 (34,289) 401,913

Approval of the financial statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 29 June 2016.

44, #HtEB T
BEBER-—S—AEXA-tHhBES
EeE RIFRETIE -
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Five-Year Financial Summary

LEHBBE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from
the Group's published financial statements, is set out below.

RESULTS

For the year ended 31 March

—Fo

BEZA=+-ALFE

AEEBEREMBRFREZEE  BEMEE
ME (BEEAKEC TEMBE®REK) #IW

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
—E-RE —T—hF ZTNF —E—=F ZT——-F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET TETT TFA&TT FET
Revenue A 609,335 702,856 1,477,332 984,296 690,043
Profit/(loss) before tax  B&HRLATHEF
(B#E) (32,349) 19,052 36,034 47,941 33,692
Income tax expense Frigfi sz (774) (3,178) (7,638) (7,875) (5,522)
Profit/(loss) and total FREA
comprehensive (Es18) &
income/(expenses) for  ZHEUWA
the year (%) 1% (33,123) 15,874 28,396 40,066 28,170
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERAE
As at 31 March R=A=+—H
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
=EB-AF ZTRF ZT0OF —T=F T =F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FAET FAT FAET
Total assets BEE 1,702,936 376,040 460,726 629,531 439,535
Total liabilities @ e s (1169.985)  (149,913)  (250,473)  (485,082)  (335,152)
Total equity g 532,951 226,127 210,253 144,449 104,383
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